
PUBLIC/LEGAL NOTICE 

 
The regular monthly Board meeting of the Lisle Library District (LLD) Board of Trustees will be held on May 21, 2025 at 7:00 pm in the 

Meeting Room of the Lisle Library District, 777 Front Street, Lisle, Illinois. 

Persons who cannot provide public comment in-person may send comments via email to pubcomment@lislelibrary.org or via USPS 

mail addressed to: Public Comment/Administration, 777 Front Street, Lisle, IL 60532. Comments should be received at least 12 hours 

prior to the scheduled meeting time. Submitted comments will not be read aloud. Comments will be provided to Trustees prior to the 

start of the meeting and are considered a public record. 

The LLD records all regular Board meetings. Any person who has a disability requiring accommodations to participate in this meeting 

should contact the Lisle Library during regular business hours within 48 hours before the meeting. Requests for a qualified interpreter 

require three working days advance notice. 

 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT 

BOARD MEETING 

May 21, 2025 - 7:00 p.m. 

1. Roll call 

2. Opportunity for visitors to speak - general public comment period 

3. Election of Officers - Action Required 

Election of LLD President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer for 12-month terms.  

4. Assignments for reviewing monthly accounts payable 

a. Treasurer Larson and Trustee Martin reviewed the April billings in May 

b. Trustee Berry and Trustee Breihan will review the May billings in June 

5. Consent Agenda - Action Required 

a. Approve Minutes of the April 16, 2025 Board Meeting 

b. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Report, 04/30/25, Investment Activity Report, 04/30/25, Current Assets Report, 

04/30/25, Revenue Report, 04/30/25, and Expense Report, 04/30/25 

c. Authorize Payment of Bills, 05/21/25 

6. Unfinished Business 
a. Capital Improvement Project 

i. Monthly Project Status Update - CCS HVAC Project report 
7. Committee Reports 

a. Finance 

b. Personnel and Policy 

c. Physical Plant 

d. Strategic Planning 

8. Staff Reports 

a. Director Report 

b. Assistant Director Report 

9. New Business 

a. Salary Scale FY2025-26 - Action Required 

Approve updated salary scale for FY2025-26 

b. Draft Working Budget FY2025-26 – discussion 

c. Award Cleaning Service Contract effective 7/1/25 - Action Required 

Award six-month cleaning service contract to Eco Clean from July 1, 2025 to December 31, 2025 for nightly 

library cleaning and weekday porter service totaling $18,372 effective 7/1/25. 

d. Proposed Lisle East Ogden Avenue Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District by the Village of Lisle - discussion 

e. Acknowledge payment of earned/unused vacation time as required by IL Wage Payment and Collection 

Act (820 ILCS 115/5) - payment shall not exceed $113.97, to be paid to Amanda Turnbull. 

f. Acknowledge payment of earned/unused vacation time as required by IL Wage Payment and Collection 

Act (820 ILCS 115/5) - payment shall not exceed $2819.65, to be paid to Tiffany Song. 

10. Opportunity for Trustee comments (five minutes) 

Berry, Breihan, Larson, Martin, Paley, Sullivan, Swistak 

11. Adjourn  

1 



 

 

LISLE LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD MEETING  

April 16, 2025 - 7:00 p.m.  

  

1. Roll call 

Present:  

Emily Swistak - President  

Marjorie Bartelli - Vice President  

Karen Larson - Treasurer  

Liz Sullivan - Secretary  

Vanessa Berry - Trustee  

Debbie Breihan - Trustee  

Josh Martin - Trustee  

  

Also present:  

Tatiana Weinstein - Director  

Laura Murff - Director of Technical Services [left the meeting at 7:40 p.m.] 

Jackie Kilcran - Recording Secretary  

  

2. Opportunity for visitors to speak - general public comment period - None  

 

3. Trustee Recognition 

a.    Resolution 25-02 - Marjorie Bartelli commendation - Action Required 

i.  Acknowledgement opportunity for honoree 

 MOTION: Secretary Sullivan moved to approve Resolution R25-02 - Marjorie Bartelli 

commendation. Treasurer Larson seconded.  

 

 President Swistak read Resolution R25-02 which commended Marjorie Bartelli for her years 

of service as a Trustee of the LLD, her leadership as President, Vice President, and Secretary 

of the Board of Trustees, and as Chair of the Physical Plant, Decennial, and Strategic 

Planning Committees, as well as guiding the LLD through the 2023 renovation project. 

 

 Vice President Bartelli asked to present her comments at the end of the meeting. 

 

 Roll Call Vote - All aye. The motion passed. 

 

4. Assignments for reviewing monthly accounts payable  

a. Secretary Sullivan and Trustee Berry reviewed the March billings in April  

b. Treasurer Larson and Trustee Martin will review the April billings in May  

  

5. Consent Agenda - Action Required  

a. Approve Minutes of the March 19, 2025 Board Meeting  

b. Acknowledge Treasurer’s Report, 03/31/25, Investment Activity Report, 03/31/25, Current 

Assets Report, 03/31/25, Revenue Report, 03/31/25, and Expense Report, 03/31/25  

c. Authorize Payment of Bills, 04/16/25  

2 



 

 

MOTION: Trustee Berry moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Trustee Martin 

seconded. Roll Call Vote - All Aye. The motion passed.  

 

6. Unfinished Business  

a. Capital Improvement Project  

i. Monthly Project Status Update - CCS Report including progress, schedule and 

budget updates & discussions  

  

Director Weinstein presented the CCS report. She informed Trustees that 30 of 40 VAV 

boxes have been connected to the new BAS software. IBS has been troubleshooting some 

wiring issues, causing some delay in completing the project. Once sorted, they will connect 

the remaining 10 VAV boxes. There will be no extra charge for the troubleshooting. 

 

Delivery of the condensing units will occur within the next week. A crane will be on site to 

lift the units into the mechanical yards. The installation of all units should be completed in 

May. 

 

Marc Rogers will be working on a ten-year facility plan with Director Weinstein. Director 

Weinstein, Assistant Director Savage, and Mr. Rogers will meet in early May to discuss the 

results of the Community Survey and next steps for developing the Kingston lot.  

 

7. Committee Reports  

a. Finance – Trustee Breihan had nothing to report at this time.  

b. Personnel and Policy - Trustee Berry had nothing to report at this time. 

c. Physical Plant - Trustee Martin had nothing to report at this time. 

d. Strategic Planning - Director Weinstein provided a recap of the Strategic Planning 

Committee meeting held on April 9, 2025. After reviewing the data from the Community 

Survey and the four focus groups, the Committee agreed on three major focus areas: 

Awareness,  Resources, and Property. The Committee was asked to submit objectives and 

approaches. Those results would be discussed at the next Strategic Planning Committee 

meeting. 

 

8. Staff Reports  

a. Directors Report  

Director Weinstein thanked Vice President Bartelli for her many years of service and 

leadership as member of the Board of Trustees.  She also thanked Ms. Bartelli for her 

support of the Library, and for attending programs and events. She stated that the staff 

appreciates when Trustees utilize the Library and that their event attendance does not 

go unnoticed.  

 

Director Weinstein stated that the power outage on April 4th left the Library without 

power until noon. Once the power was restored, it took ninety minutes to reboot the 

servers and power up all electronic equipment. The Library opened at 1:30PM. The 

Library is obtaining quotes for a server room generator to keep servers running during 

outages. This will allow patrons to remotely access the catalog and databases during an 

outage, and reduce the time to reopen the Library once power is restored.  

3 



 

 

 

Trustee Martin requested information about cloud-based servers for comparison 

purposes. 

 

Director Weinstein stated that the Library would host a volunteer Hokusai community 

art program on April 17th. She expects between 30 to 36 people to attend. The Lisle 

Woman’s Club has 16 members scheduled to attend. Director Weinstein stated that she 

is picking up approximately 60 completed banners from Lisle Elementary, Junior High, 

and High School as well.  

 

Director Weinstein featured the bench purchased by the Lisle Woman’s Club. The 

bench will be situated in the South vestibule of the building. She thanked the Club for 

their generous donation. She also highlighted a painting of a sea turtle painted by local 

artist Sue Thomas. Ms. Thomas donated the painting to the LLD. It will hang in the 

Youth Services Department over Jack and Jill’s tanks.  Director Weinstein thanked Ms. 

Thomas for her donation. 

 

Director Weinstein said that the LLD had a very successful National Library Week. The 

week wrapped up with a Storytime visit from Mouse from If you Give a Mouse a Cookie. 

Mouse took photos and provided cookie treats to all attendees. In the lobby, there was 

a cookie jar guessing game, and a Library themed crossword puzzle. 

 

b. Assistant Directors Report  

In Assistant Director Savage’s absence, Director Weinstein informed the Board that 

both she and Assistant Director Savage attended on online OMA webinar presented by 

the Illinois Attorney General’s Office.  

 

During the annual roof inspection, Metalmaster Roofmaster noted crumbling mortar on 

one side of the building. A masonry company was called onsite to assess the 

deterioration and determine the best course of action. The proposal will be presented 

at the next Physical Plant Committee meeting. 

 

The electrician was out to repair lighting in the north parking lot. It was determined that 

squirrels chewed the wiring. The electrician will return to install rodent barriers. 

 

Assistant Director Savage has submitted a claim to ComEd for repairs required as a 

result of a previous power outage that was ComEd’s responsibility.  

 

c.    Director of Technical Services Report  

  Director Murff provided an interactive presentation of the new Aspen catalog overlay 

still in development. She performed a general book search in the current catalog and 

using the new overlay. Ms. Murff also performed a search using “Hokusai” as the search 

term. Along with materials in the collection, the Library’s Hokusai program also came 

up in the results. If a patron clicked on the Hokusai program, the patron would be 

redirected to the program registration page.  

 

4 



 

 

  Ms. Murff explained that link language, color schemes, and placards are still being 

developed.  

 

  Trustee Breihan asked when the catalog will go live. Ms. Murff explained the plan is to 

go live for Summer Read. Trustee Berry asked if the catalog overlay will integrate with 

the LLD mobile app. Ms. Murff affirmed yes.  

 

  Trustee Martin asked about more titles being available via Hoopla and Kanopy. Ms. 

Murff explained that both providers negotiate with the vendors and gain access to 

content packages that they then provide to libraries.  

 

  Director of Technical Services Murff left the meeting at 7:40 p.m. 

 

9. New Business  

a. Announcement for Request for Proposal (RFP) for Library cleaning services.  

 

President Swistak read the announcement for the Request for Proposal (RFP) for Library 

cleaning services. The notice will appear in the local newspaper and our the LLD website on 

Friday, April 19, 2025. 

 

10. Opportunity for Trustee comments (five minutes)  

  

President Swistak stated that she was excited to see the new catalog overlay and appreciated the 

demonstration by Director of Technical Services Murff. She thanked Vice President Bartelli for her 

eight years of service to the LLD. She said she was grateful to have worked with Marjorie throughout 

the renovation and stated that she will be missed. 

 

Trustee Berry thanked Vice President Bartelli for welcoming her when she joined the Board of 

Trustees. She also thanked her for her years of service. She said that she heard a child wanted to 

“check out” the LLD’s turtles Jack and Jill, and that the child thought they should be part of the 

circulating collection. She also stated that she is excited to see the Hokusai banners displayed at 

Gallery 777. 

 

Trustee Martin was happy to see the cross functionality and ease of use of the catalog overlay. He 

thanked Vice President Bartelli for her leadership. He thanked her for her support and presence at 

Library events. 

 

Trustee Breihan thanked Vice President Bartelli for welcoming newer members on the Board. She 

thanked her for her leadership. Trustee Breihan appreciated the catalog overlay demonstration. She 

enjoyed the quarterly reports. She appreciated the outreach the Library performs to members of 

the community of all ages. She was happy to see 25 residents of Brookdale register for Library cards. 

She said she loves the new bench donated by the Lisle Woman’s Club. She is pleased that the Library 

provides a place for the community to gather and meet.  

 

Secretary Sullivan said she appreciated the quarterly reports and the online catalog demonstration. 

She thanked Vice President Bartelli for her years of leadership and her input through the years.  

5 



 

 

 

Treasurer Larson said she liked the catalog redesign and feels the patrons will love the new browsing 

experience. She said that Vice President Bartelli will be very much missed. 

 

Vice President Bartelli thanked Director of Technical Services Murff for her presentation of the 

catalog overlay. She stated that she enjoyed the quarterly reports. She said that she was grateful to 

have served the residents of Lisle and for being able to contribute to the Library. She has 

appreciated the opportunity to work with the other Trustees. She thanked Director Weinstein for 

her support and for her outstanding leadership. She thanked Assistant Director Savage for his 

support. She thanked Treasurer Larson, Secretary Sullivan, and President Swistak for the success of 

the 2023 renovation. She said she is excited to see what the future holds for the Library, and wished 

the current Trustees much success. 

  

11. Adjourn  

MOTION: Vice President Bartelli moved to adjourn the meeting. Trustee Martin 

seconded. Voice Vote - All Aye. The motion passed.  

  

The meeting adjourned at 7:49 p.m.  

  

Recorded by  

  

____________________________________  

Jackie Kilcran, Recording Secretary  

  

Approved by the Board of Trustees on May 21, 2025.  

  

Approved by  

  

_____________________________________  

       Secretary of the LLD 

6 



7 



8 



9 



10 



11 



12 



13 



14 



15 



16 



17 



18 



19 



5
/1

4
/2

5
 a

t 
1
2
:4

9
:5

4
.3

3
P

a
g

e
: 

1

L
is

le
 L

ib
ra

ry
D

is
tr

ic
t 

2
0

2
5

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a
b

le
 -

 M
a
y
 2

1
, 
2
0
2
5

V
e

n
d

o
r 

ID
In

v
o

ic
e

/C
M

 #
L

in
e

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

ID
A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
D

e
b

it
 A

m
o

u
n

t
C

re
d

it
 A

m
o

u
n

t

A
F

L
A

C
0

1
9

5
3

3
P

a
y
ro

ll 
W

it
h

h
o

ld
in

g
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

2
-0

0
A

F
L

A
C

 W
it
h

h
o

ld
in

g
1

1
1

.4
1

A
F

L
A

C
 (

G
6

9
2

0
)

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
1

1
.4

1

A
m

a
z
o

n
0

5
0

5
2

5
B

o
o

k
s
, 

D
V

D
s
, 

S
u

p
p

lie
s

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

6
4

-1
0

B
o

o
k
s
 -

 N
o

n
 F

ic
ti
o

n
1

9
4

.5
0

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

6
5

-1
0

B
o

o
k
s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
/T

e
e

n
 F

ic
ti

2
8

5
.1

1
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
9

5
-4

0
A

-V
 M

a
tl
s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

1
3

2
.9

4
1

0
-6

0
-5

9
3

1
-1

0
P

ro
g

ra
m

s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

5
0

8
.6

7
1

0
-4

8
-5

8
2

3
-2

0
M

in
o

r 
E

q
u

ip
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

i
2

0
3

.1
3

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

6
3

-3
0

B
o

o
k
s
 -

 Y
o

u
th

 S
e

rv
2

9
6

.0
0

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

9
0

-3
0

A
-V

 M
a
tls

 -
 Y

o
u
th

 S
e
rv

4
7

.3
7

1
0

-6
0

-5
9

3
1

-3
0

P
ro

g
ra

m
s
 -

 Y
o

u
th

1
8

3
.4

2
1

0
-6

0
-5

9
4

0
-3

0
R

e
a

d
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 -

 Y
o

u
th

 
7

7
1

.5
5

1
0

-2
5

-5
7

1
6

-0
0

K
it
c
h

e
n

 S
u

p
p

lie
s

2
2

.5
0

1
0

-2
5

-5
7

1
3

-0
0

O
ff

ic
e

 S
u

p
p

lie
s

1
1

0
.9

9
1

0
-2

5
-5

7
1

7
-0

0
P

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
6

.2
9

1
0

-2
5

-5
7

1
4

-0
0

C
ir

c
. 

M
a

te
ri

a
l 
S

u
p

p
lie

s
2

6
0

.9
1

1
0

-4
8

-5
8

2
3

-5
0

M
in

o
r 

E
q

u
ip

 -
 T

e
c
h

 S
e

rv
i

1
8

.8
0

1
0

-2
5

-5
7

1
8

-0
0

C
o

m
p

u
te

r 
S

u
p

p
lie

s
9

2
.3

8
1

0
-6

0
-5

9
3

1
-5

0
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 R

e
la

ti
o

n
s

7
8

.0
4

A
m

a
z
o

n
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

3
,2

1
2

.6
0

B
&

T
 (

L
0

3
3

4
1

5
2

)
2

0
3

9
0

5
1

2
8

5
B

o
o

k
s

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

6
4

-1
0

B
o

o
k
s
 -

 N
o

n
 F

ic
ti
o

n
2

2
5

.2
3

B
a

k
e

r 
&

 T
a

y
lo

r 
(L

0
3

3
4

1
5

2
)

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

2
2

5
.2

3

B
&

T
 (

L
0

3
3

4
1

5
2

)
2

0
3

9
0

5
1

2
8

6
P

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
1

0
-2

5
-5

7
1

7
-0

0
P

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
6

.4
5

B
a

k
e

r 
&

 T
a

y
lo

r 
(L

0
3

3
4

1
5

2
)

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

6
.4

5

B
e

a
r 

L
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

1
4

9
7

1
L

a
n

d
s
c
a

p
in

g
 #

1
 o

f 
8

1
0

-2
0

-5
6

6
2

-0
0

M
a

in
t 

C
o

n
tr

. 
- 

L
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
1

,1
3

4
.0

0
B

e
a

r 
L

a
n

d
s
c
a

p
e

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
,1

3
4

.0
0

C
a

is
e

, 
M

a
llo

ry
0

5
0

1
2

5
R

e
a

c
h

in
g

 F
o

rw
a

rd
C

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e

1
0

-4
0

-5
7

8
5

-0
0

C
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 -

 S
ta

ff
4

5
.9

0

M
a

llo
ry

 C
a

is
e

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

4
5

.9
0

C
o

lla
z
o

, 
K

a
ra

ly
n

0
5

0
1

2
5

R
e

a
c
h

in
g

 F
o

rw
a

rd
C

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e

1
0

-4
0

-5
7

8
5

-0
0

C
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 -

 S
ta

ff
4

3
.5

6

K
a

ra
ly

n
 C

o
lla

z
o

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

4
3

.5
6

C
o

m
E

d
0

4
3

0
2

5
U

s
a

g
e

1
0

-2
0

-5
6

5
5

-0
0

U
ti
lit

ie
s
 -

 E
le

c
tr

ic
2

,6
8

2
.8

7
C

o
m

E
d

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

2
,6

8
2

.8
7

C
u

lli
g

a
n

 o
f 

W
h

e
a

to
n

0
4

3
0

2
5

W
a

te
r

1
0

-2
5

-5
7

1
6

-0
0

K
it
c
h

e
n

 S
u

p
p

lie
s

4
9

.9
4

C
u

lli
g

a
n

 o
f 

W
h

e
a

to
n

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

4
9

.9
4

D
e

ll
1

0
8

1
2

9
4

7
1

3
0

S
p

ic
e

 2
 Y

e
a

r 
W

a
rr

a
n

ty
1

0
-3

5
-5

7
6

3
-0

0
O

th
e

r 
C

o
n

tr
 S

rv
c
s
-T

e
c
h

 
7

5
8

.0
8

D
e

ll 
M

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 L

L
P

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

7
5

8
.0

8

F
o

ld
in

g
 P

a
rt

it
io

n
2

5
-1

1
5

8
2

-E
F

o
ld

in
g

 P
a

rt
it
io

n
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

1
0

-2
0

-5
6

6
4

-0
0

M
a

in
t/

R
e

p
a

ir
s
-N

o
n

 C
o

n
tr

5
6

5
.0

0

F
o

ld
in

g
 P

a
rt

it
io

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
,

Ii
n

c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

5
6

5
.0

0

20 



5
/1

4
/2

5
 a

t 
1
2
:4

9
:5

4
.4

2
P

a
g

e
: 

2

L
is

le
 L

ib
ra

ry
D

is
tr

ic
t 

2
0

2
5

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a
b

le
 -

 M
a
y
 2

1
, 
2
0
2
5

V
e

n
d

o
r 

ID
In

v
o

ic
e

/C
M

 #
L

in
e

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

ID
A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
D

e
b

it
 A

m
o

u
n

t
C

re
d

it
 A

m
o

u
n

t

F
ro

s
ty

 D
o

g
s

0
5

3
1

2
5

S
u

m
m

e
r 

R
e

a
d

 K
ic

k
-O

ff
1

0
-8

0
-5

9
8

1
-8

0
R

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 -

 P
e

r 
C

a
p

it
a

 
1

,2
0

0
.0

0
F

ro
s
ty

 D
o

g
s
, 

L
L

C
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
,2

0
0

.0
0

G
a

rr
it
a

n
o

, 
C

o
n

s
ta

n
c
e

0
5

3
1

2
5

S
u

m
m

e
r 

R
e

a
d

 K
ic

k
-O

ff
1

0
-6

0
-5

9
3

1
-1

0
P

ro
g

ra
m

s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e

2
0

0
.0

0
C

o
n

s
ta

n
c
e

 G
a

rr
it
a

n
o

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

2
0

0
.0

0

G
ro

o
t

1
4

4
0

4
7

8
6

T
0

9
8

R
u

b
b

is
h

1
0

-2
0

-5
6

6
5

-0
0

R
u

b
b

is
h

 R
e

m
o

v
a

l
3

2
6

.8
8

G
ro

o
t,

 I
n

c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

3
2

6
.8

8

H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
2

4
9

3
4

3
B

lo
c
k
 o

f 
3

0
 H

o
u

rs
1

0
-3

5
-5

7
6

3
-0

0
O

th
e

r 
C

o
n

tr
 S

rv
c
s
-T

e
c
h

 
4

,3
5

0
.0

0
H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
S

o
lu

ti
o

n
s

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

4
,3

5
0

.0
0

H
R

 S
o

u
rc

e
F

Y
2

6
-5

8
4

7
8

A
n

n
u

a
l 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
1

0
-3

5
-5

7
6

4
-1

0
O

th
e

r 
C

o
n

tr
 S

rv
c
s
 -

 L
ib

ra
1

,3
2

0
.0

0
H

R
 S

o
u

rc
e

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
,3

2
0

.0
0

In
g

ra
m

0
5

0
1

2
5

B
o

o
k
s
 &

 P
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
6

5
-1

0
B

o
o

k
s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
/T

e
e

n
 F

ic
ti

6
,8

3
9

.6
2

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

6
4

-1
0

B
o

o
k
s
 -

 N
o

n
 F

ic
ti
o

n
5

,3
7

9
.6

4
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
6

7
-2

0
R

e
f 

B
o

o
k
s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

3
2

0
.6

2
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
6

3
-3

0
B

o
o

k
s
 -

 Y
o

u
th

 S
e

rv
4

,7
4

0
.6

3
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
6

3
-2

0
L

it
e

ra
c
y
/E

S
L

2
1

.5
8

1
0

-2
5

-5
7

1
7

-0
0

P
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
2

,5
8

5
.6

3
In

g
ra

m
 L

ib
ra

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
9

,8
8

7
.7

2

In
g

ra
m

 E
x
p

re
s
s

8
7

5
0

0
5

9
2

B
o

o
k
s

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

6
5

-1
0

B
o

o
k
s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
/T

e
e

n
 F

ic
ti

2
2

.5
0

In
g

ra
m

 L
ib

ra
ry

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

In
c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

2
2

.5
0

J
o

h
n

s
o

n
 F

ir
e

2
4

6
8

0
4

5
4

A
n

n
u

a
l 
F

ir
e

 A
la

rm
 T

e
s
ti
n

g
1

0
-2

0
-5

6
6

1
-0

0
M

a
in

t 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 -
 M

a
in

t.
 

4
,0

9
0

.0
0

1
0

-4
8

-5
8

0
4

-1
0

F
a

c
ili

ty
2

,8
1

1
.8

8
J
o

h
n

s
o

n
 C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 F

ir
e

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

6
,9

0
1

.8
8

J
o

h
n

s
o

n
 F

ir
e

2
4

6
8

1
0

4
9

A
n

n
u

a
l 
S

p
ri

n
k
le

r 
T

e
s
ti
n

g
1

0
-2

0
-5

6
6

1
-0

0
M

a
in

t 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 -
 M

a
in

t.
 

4
9

9
.0

6
J
o

h
n

s
o

n
 C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 F

ir
e

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

4
9

9
.0

6

J
o

h
n

s
o

n
 F

ir
e

2
4

6
8

5
5

9
8

A
n

n
u

a
l 
B

a
c
k
fl
o

w
 T

e
s
ti
n

g
1

0
-2

0
-5

6
6

1
-0

0
M

a
in

t 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 -
 M

a
in

t.
 

1
,1

1
4

.9
2

J
o

h
n

s
o

n
 C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 F

ir
e

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
,1

1
4

.9
2

J
o

h
n

s
o

n
 F

ir
e

3
0

0
2

0
4

1
1

2
6

0
0

3
_

1
C

re
d

it
 M

e
m

o
1

0
-2

0
-5

6
6

1
-0

0
M

a
in

t 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
ts

 -
 M

a
in

t.
 

1
5

0
.0

0
J
o

h
n

s
o

n
 C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 F

ir
e

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
5

0
.0

0

J
o

h
n

s
o

n
 F

ir
e

5
2

9
4

7
1

9
9

H
e

a
t 

D
e

te
c
to

r 
R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

1
0

-4
8

-5
8

0
4

-1
0

F
a

c
ili

ty
1

,0
8

0
.2

5
J
o

h
n

s
o

n
 C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 F

ir
e

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
,0

8
0

.2
5

K
a

n
o

p
y

4
5

0
6

7
5

K
a

n
o

p
y

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

9
9

-2
0

D
ig

it
a

l 
C

o
n

te
n

t
3

9
7

.0
0

K
a

n
o

p
y
, 

In
c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

3
9

7
.0

0

21 



5
/1

4
/2

5
 a

t 
1
2
:4

9
:5

4
.4

4
P

a
g

e
: 

3

L
is

le
 L

ib
ra

ry
D

is
tr

ic
t 

2
0

2
5

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a
b

le
 -

 M
a
y
 2

1
, 
2
0
2
5

V
e

n
d

o
r 

ID
In

v
o

ic
e

/C
M

 #
L

in
e

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

ID
A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
D

e
b

it
 A

m
o

u
n

t
C

re
d

it
 A

m
o

u
n

t

K
o

n
ic

a
 M

in
o

lt
a

 B
u

s
in

5
0

1
8

6
0

1
9

4
#

C
4

5
8

 U
s
a

g
e

1
0

-4
8

-5
8

4
5

-0
0

E
q

u
ip

 M
a

in
t/

R
e

p
r-

C
o

n
tr

-
3

7
4

.6
4

K
o

n
ic

a
 M

in
o

lt
a

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s

S
o

lu
ti
o

n
s

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

3
7

4
.6

4

K
o

n
ic

a
 M

in
o

lt
a

 B
u

s
in

9
0

1
0

4
3

5
8

9
9

P
ri

n
te

r 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

1
0

-4
8

-5
8

4
5

-0
0

E
q

u
ip

 M
a

in
t/

R
e

p
r-

C
o

n
tr

-
1

4
8

.6
8

K
o

n
ic

a
 M

in
o

lt
a

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s

S
o

lu
ti
o

n
s

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
4

8
.6

8

L
ib

ra
ry

 M
a

rk
e

t
4

1
2

0
A

n
n

u
a

l 
O

n
lin

e
 C

a
le

n
d

a
r

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

7
2

-1
0

D
b

a
s
e

s
 -

 P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
L

ib
ra

ry
 M

a
rk

e
t

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

L
IM

R
IC

C
 P

H
IP

 H
e
a
lt

0
5

0
6

2
5

M
a
y 

P
re

m
iu

m
1

0
-1

0
-5

6
2

1
-1

0
H

o
s
p

. 
In

s
. 

- 
A

d
m

in
5

,4
2

2
.7

7
1

0
-1

0
-5

6
2

1
-2

0
H

o
s
p

. 
In

s
. 

- 
A

d
u

lt
 S

e
rv

.
9

,9
8

8
.6

2
1

0
-1

0
-5

6
2

1
-3

0
H

o
s
p

. 
In

s
. 

- 
Y

S
5

,1
0

6
.8

8
1

0
-1

0
-5

6
2

1
-5

0
H

o
s
p

. 
In

s
. 

- 
T

e
c
h

4
,4

9
4

.4
1

1
0

-1
0

-5
6

2
1

-6
0

H
o

s
p

. 
In

s
. 

- 
C

ir
c

8
,7

8
2

.4
1

L
IM

R
IC

C
 P

H
IP

 H
e
a
lth

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

3
3

,7
9

5
.0

9

L
is

le
 S

a
v
in

g
s

0
5

1
6

2
5

B
o
x 

9
9
1
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l

1
0

-2
5

-5
7

2
2

-1
5

S
a

fe
ty

 D
e

p
o

s
it
 B

o
x
 R

e
n

t
1

0
0

.0
0

L
is

le
 S

a
v
in

g
s
 B

a
n

k
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
0

0
.0

0

M
id

w
e
st

 T
a
p
e

5
0

7
1

0
9

8
1

1
H

o
o

p
la

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

9
9

-2
0

D
ig

it
a

l 
C

o
n

te
n

t
7

,0
9

6
.4

2
M

id
w

e
st

 T
a
p
e

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

7
,0

9
6

.4
2

M
id

w
e
st

 T
a
p
e
 2

5
1
6

0
5

0
1

2
5

C
D

 B
o

o
k
s

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

9
5

-4
0

A
-V

 M
a

tl
s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

1
,0

5
0

.5
6

M
id

w
e

s
t 

T
a

p
e

 (
2

5
1

6
)

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
,0

5
0

.5
6

M
id

w
e
st

 T
a
p
e
 7

2
8
8

0
5

0
1

2
5

D
V

D
s
, 

B
lu

-r
a

y
s
 &

 P
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
9

5
-4

0
A

-V
 M

a
tl
s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

2
,1

1
6

.2
5

1
0

-2
5

-5
7

1
7

-0
0

P
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
5

8
8

.0
6

M
id

w
e

s
t 

T
a

p
e

 (
7

2
8

8
)

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

2
,7

0
4

.3
1

M
id

w
e
st

 T
a
p
e
 7

2
9
1

0
5

0
1

2
5

D
V

D
s
, 

B
lu

-r
a

y
s
 &

 P
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
9

0
-3

0
A

-V
 M

a
tls

 -
 Y

o
u
th

 S
e
rv

1
5

0
.7

0
M

id
w

e
s
t 

T
a

p
e

 (
7

2
9

1
)

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
5

0
.7

0

M
J
B

 D
e

s
ig

n
7

6
8

3
4

A
n

n
u

a
l 
W

e
b

s
it
e

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

1
0

-3
5

-5
7

6
3

-0
0

O
th

e
r 

C
o

n
tr

 S
rv

c
s
-T

e
c
h

 
1

,0
7

9
.0

0
M

J
B

 D
e

s
ig

n
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
,0

7
9

.0
0

N
a

p
e

rv
ill

e
 S

u
n

0
4

2
1

2
5

N
e

w
s
p

a
p

e
r

1
0

-5
0

-5
9

0
0

-2
0

P
e

ri
o

d
ic

a
ls

 -
 A

d
u

lt
 S

e
rv

1
3

6
.9

9
N

a
p

e
rv

ill
e

 S
u

n
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
3

6
.9

9

N
C

P
E

R
S

4
6

0
2

0
6

2
0

2
5

P
a

y
ro

ll 
W

it
h

h
o

ld
in

g
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
3

8
-0

0
V

o
l.
 L

if
e

 (
N

C
P

E
R

S
)

4
8

.0
0

N
C

P
E

R
S

 G
ro

u
p

 L
If

e
 I

n
s

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

4
8

.0
0

O
ve

rD
ri
ve

2
5

1
2

6
0

0
7

A
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

9
9

-2
0

D
ig

it
a

l 
C

o
n

te
n

t
7

5
.0

0
O

v
e

rD
ri

v
e

, 
In

c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

7
5

.0
0

O
ve

rD
ri
ve

2
5

1
3

7
1

1
4

C
P

C
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
9

9
-2

0
D

ig
it
a

l 
C

o
n

te
n

t
5

9
5

.0
4

O
v
e

rD
ri

v
e

, 
In

c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

5
9

5
.0

4

O
ve

rD
ri
ve

2
5

1
3

7
5

0
7

C
P

C
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
9

9
-2

0
D

ig
it
a

l 
C

o
n

te
n

t
1

3
5

.0
0

22 



5
/1

4
/2

5
 a

t 
1
2
:4

9
:5

4
.4

5
P

a
g

e
: 

4

L
is

le
 L

ib
ra

ry
D

is
tr

ic
t 

2
0

2
5

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a
b

le
 -

 M
a
y
 2

1
, 
2
0
2
5

V
e

n
d

o
r 

ID
In

v
o

ic
e

/C
M

 #
L

in
e

 D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

ID
A

c
c

o
u

n
t 

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
D

e
b

it
 A

m
o

u
n

t
C

re
d

it
 A

m
o

u
n

t

O
v
e

rD
ri

v
e

, 
In

c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
3

5
.0

0

O
ve

rD
ri
ve

2
5

1
3

9
0

6
3

C
P

C
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
9

9
-2

0
D

ig
it
a

l 
C

o
n

te
n

t
5

8
9

.2
5

O
v
e

rD
ri

v
e

, 
In

c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

5
8

9
.2

5

O
ve

rD
ri
ve

2
5

1
3

9
0

8
0

C
P

C
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
9

9
-2

0
D

ig
it
a

l 
C

o
n

te
n

t
8

2
.5

0
O

v
e

rD
ri

v
e

, 
In

c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

8
2

.5
0

O
ve

rD
ri
ve

2
5

1
3

9
7

7
3

C
P

C
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
9

9
-2

0
D

ig
it
a

l 
C

o
n

te
n

t
9

2
.6

5
O

v
e

rD
ri

v
e

, 
In

c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

9
2

.6
5

O
ve

rD
ri
ve

2
5

1
4

0
1

5
4

C
P

C
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
9

9
-2

0
D

ig
it
a

l 
C

o
n

te
n

t
2

5
.7

9
O

v
e

rD
ri

v
e

, 
In

c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

2
5

.7
9

O
ve

rD
ri
ve

H
-0

1
1

3
5

8
2

A
n

n
u

a
l 
C

o
n

s
o

rt
iu

m
 F

e
e

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

7
2

-1
0

D
b

a
s
e

s
 -

 P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l
3

,0
0

0
.0

0
O

v
e

rD
ri

v
e

, 
In

c
.

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

3
,0

0
0

.0
0

P
e

n
w

o
rt

h
y

0
6

0
6

8
7

1
-I

N
B

o
o

k
s

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

6
3

-3
0

B
o

o
k
s
 -

 Y
o

u
th

 S
e

rv
3

5
5

.9
0

T
h

e
 P

e
n

w
o

rt
h

y
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

3
5

5
.9

0

P
e

n
w

o
rt

h
y

0
6

0
8

1
1

0
-I

N
S

ta
y
 S

h
a

rp
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
6

4
-1

0
B

o
o

k
s
 -

 N
o

n
 F

ic
ti
o

n
2

3
.0

0
T

h
e

 P
e

n
w

o
rt

h
y
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

2
3

.0
0

P
e

n
w

o
rt

h
y

6
0

7
9

9
2

-I
N

S
ta

y
 S

h
a

rp
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
1

0
-5

0
-5

8
6

4
-1

0
B

o
o

k
s
 -

 N
o

n
 F

ic
ti
o

n
1

6
.0

0
T

h
e

 P
e

n
w

o
rt

h
y
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
6

.0
0

S
W

A
N

1
1

9
1

1
R

e
c
ip

ro
c
a

l 
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

 L
o

s
s

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

6
5

-1
0

B
o

o
k
s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
/T

e
e

n
 F

ic
ti

1
3

.0
0

S
W

A
N

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
3

.0
0

T
e

rm
in

ix
 A

n
d

e
rs

o
n

7
7

5
8

2
6

3
4

P
e

s
t 

C
o

n
tr

o
l

1
0

-4
8

-5
8

0
4

-1
0

F
a

c
ili

ty
1

7
2

.8
1

T
e

rm
in

ix
 A

n
d

e
rs

o
n

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
7

2
.8

1

T
h

o
m

a
s
 K

lis
e

2
0

6
0

8
V

id
e

o
 G

a
m

e
s

1
0

-5
0

-5
8

9
5

-4
0

A
-V

 M
a

tl
s
 -

 A
d

u
lt
 S

e
rv

4
4

.6
2

T
h

o
m

a
s
 K

lis
e

 /
 C

ri
m

s
o

n
M

u
lt
im

e
d

ia
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

4
4

.6
2

T
o

s
h

ib
a

6
5

5
3

0
5

0
C

o
p

ie
r 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

1
0

-4
8

-5
8

4
5

-0
0

E
q

u
ip

 M
a

in
t/

R
e

p
r-

C
o

n
tr

-
1

3
5

.1
9

T
o

s
h

ib
a

 A
m

e
ri

c
a

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s

S
o

lu
ti
o

n
s

1
0

-0
0

-2
6

1
0

-0
0

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

1
3

5
.1

9

U
n

iq
u

e
6

1
3

8
7

6
0

A
p

ri
l 
P

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

1
0

-3
5

-5
7

6
1

-0
0

C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 A

g
e

n
c
y

3
7

.9
5

U
n

iq
u

e
1

0
-0

0
-2

6
1

0
-0

0
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

3
7

.9
5

1
0

0
,3

6
3

.3
4

1
0

0
,3

6
3

.3
4

23 



P
R

IO
R

 M
O

N
T

H
S

 B
IL

L
S

 P
A

ID
 B

E
T

W
E

E
N

 A
P

R
IL

 2
0
2
5
 A

N
D

 M
A

Y
 2

0
2
5

B
O

A
R

D
 M

E
E

T
IN

G
S

 T
H

A
T

 N
E

E
D

 A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L

 A
T

 T
H

IS
 T

IM
E

.

C
h

e
c
k
 #

V
e
n

d
o

r
A

m
o

u
n

t

H
S

A
S

a
la

ri
e

s
 4

/1
5

/2
0

2
5

6
9

5
0

2
.3

1

H
S

A
IL

 D
e

p
t.

 o
f 

R
e
v
e

n
u

e
S

ta
te

 T
a

x
 W

it
h

h
e

ld
4

4
2

9
.2

6

H
S

A
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
a

v
in

g
s
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t
P

a
y
ro

ll 
W

it
h

h
o

ld
in

g
6

5
.0

0

A
u

to
 W

/D
H

o
w

a
rd

 S
im

o
n

 &
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

te
s

P
R

 S
e

rv
. 

- 
4

/1
5

/2
0

2
5

9
2

5
.1

3

H
S

A
E

F
T

P
S

/E
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 T

a
x
 P

a
y
m

e
n

t 
4

/1
5

/2
0

2
5

  
  

  
F

e
d

 T
a

x
  

  
  

  
  

$
8

2
8

9
.8

2
2

2
7

1
2

.7
4

  
  

  
F

IC
A

  
 W

/H
  

  
 $

7
2

1
1

.4
7

  
  

  
F

IC
A

  
 L

ib
  

  
  

 $
7

2
1

1
.4

5

 

H
S

A
S

a
la

ri
e

s
 4

/3
0

/2
0

2
5

6
7

5
3

3
.0

8

H
S

A
IL

 D
e

p
t.

 o
f 

R
e
v
e

n
u

e
S

ta
te

 T
a

x
 W

it
h

h
e

ld
4

2
9

1
.0

5

H
S

A
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
a

v
in

g
s
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t
P

a
y
ro

ll 
W

it
h

h
o

ld
in

g
6

5
.0

0

A
u

to
 W

/D
H

o
w

a
rd

 S
im

o
n

 &
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

te
s

P
R

 S
e

rv
. 

- 
4

/3
0

/2
0

2
5

3
6

.8
5

H
S

A
E

F
T

P
S

/E
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 T

a
x
 P

a
y
m

e
n

t 
4

/3
0

/2
0

2
5

  
 F

e
d

 T
a

x
  

  
  

  
 $

7
9

5
2

.4
3

2
1

9
5

8
.5

9

  
 F

IC
A

  
W

/H
  

  
 $

7
0

0
3

.0
8

  
 F

IC
A

  
 L

ib
  

  
  

$
7

0
0

3
.0

8

W
ir

e
d

IM
R

F
IM

R
F

 W
/H

  
  

  
  

$
9

2
2

3
.0

0
1

6
8

8
5

.5
1

IM
R

F
 L

ib
  

  
  

  
  

$
7

6
6

2
.5

1

 
 

 S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l 
  

2
0

8
4

0
4

.5
2

C
h

e
c
k
 #

V
e
n

d
o

r
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

A
m

o
u

n
t

8
9

5
4

1
 S

o
u

rc
e

 M
e

c
h

a
n

ic
a

l,
 I

n
c
.

B
o

ile
r 

R
e

p
a

ir
6

7
5

.0
0

8
9

5
5

4
im

p
ri

n
t,

 I
n

c
.

S
u

m
m

e
r 

R
e

a
d

 P
ri

z
e

s
5

,8
2

4
.7

8

8
9

5
6

A
A

A
 G

la
s
s
 T

in
t

W
in

d
o

w
 T

in
ts

5
4

5
.4

8

8
9

5
7

A
F

L
A

C
 (

G
6

9
2

0
)

P
a

y
ro

ll 
W

it
h

h
o

ld
in

g
1

1
1

.4
1

8
9

5
8

A
lb

e
rt

s
o

n
s
 |
 S

a
fe

w
a

y
S

u
p

p
lie

s
, 

N
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
L

ib
ra

ry
 W

e
e

k
3

1
4

.1
9

8
9

5
9

B
e

a
r 

L
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
e

L
a

n
d

s
c
a

p
in

g
, 

F
ro

n
t 

S
tr

e
e

t
2

,1
5

5
.0

0

8
9

6
0

C
h
ic

a
g

o
 T

ri
b

u
n

e
S

u
b

s
c
ri

p
ti
o

n
6

5
6

.9
9

8
9

6
1

C
o
m

p
a

c
t 

D
is

c
 S

o
u

rc
e

M
u

s
ic

 C
D

s
 &

 P
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
7

7
5

.4
1

8
9

6
2

C
o
s
tu

m
e

 S
p

e
c
ia

lis
ts

M
o

u
s
e

 C
o

s
tu

m
e

2
9

0
.0

0

8
9

6
3

C
u
lli

g
a

n
 o

f 
W

h
e

a
to

n
W

a
te

r
5

9
.8

9

8
9

6
4

D
e
ll 

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 L

L
P

N
e
w

 P
C

s
 f

o
r 

S
ta

ff
1

8
,1

7
2

.0
5

24 



8
9

6
5

D
e
lt
a

 D
e

n
ta

l 
- 

R
is

k
M

a
y
 P

re
m

iu
m

1
,8

9
1

.9
7

8
9

6
6

X
a

v
ie

r 
D

u
ra

n
P

ro
g

ra
m

 S
u

p
p

lie
s

1
0

.9
9

8
9

6
7

E
c
o

 C
le

a
n

 M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

J
a

n
it
o

ri
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
2

,9
8

5
.0

0

8
9

6
8

F
N

B
O

 B
ill

in
g

 A
c
c
o

u
n

t
P

ro
g

ra
m

s
, 

T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
, 

C
o
n

fe
re

n
c
e

s
4

,1
2

4
.3

5

8
9

6
9

G
a

rv
e

y
's

 O
ff
ic

e
 P

ro
d

u
c
ts

S
u

p
p

lie
s

9
5

.2
0

8
9

7
0

H
o
m

e
 D

e
p

o
t 

C
re

d
it
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
F

lo
w

e
rs

 f
o

r 
O

u
td

o
o

r 
P

la
n

te
rs

3
4

.8
6

8
9

7
1

In
te

ra
c
ti
v
e

 B
u

ild
in

g
 S

o
lu

ti
o

n
s

B
A

S
6

,9
3

0
.0

0

8
9

7
2

N
ig

e
l 
J
a

c
k
s
o

n
C

2
E

2
8

6
.5

2

8
9

7
3

J
o

h
n

s
o

n
 C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 S

e
c
u

ri
ty

 S
o

lu
ti
o

n
s

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
1

5
0

.0
0

8
9

7
4

Y
o

la
n

d
a

 K
o

c
e

m
b

a
E

S
L

 f
o

r 
Y

o
u

! 
T

e
a

c
h

e
r 

S
ti
p

e
n

d
1

1
4

.0
0

8
9

7
5

K
o

n
ic

a
 M

in
o

lt
a

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 S

o
lu

ti
o

n
s

P
ri

n
te

r 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 &
 #

C
2
2

7
 U

s
a

g
e

5
0

1
.7

2

8
9

7
6

K
o

n
ic

a
 M

in
o

lt
a

 P
re

m
ie

r 
F

in
a

n
c
e

#
C

2
5

1
 C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

P
a

y
m

e
n

t
2

2
5

.8
3

8
9

7
7

L
ib

ra
ri

a
B

o
o

k
s

1
,4

1
9

.3
1

8
9

7
8

L
ib

ra
ri

c
a

 L
L

C
C

A
S

S
IE

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
L

ic
e

n
s
e

 
6

2
5

.2
0

8
9

7
9

N
C

P
E

R
S

 G
ro

u
p

 L
If

e
 I

n
s

P
a

y
ro

ll 
W

it
h

h
o

ld
in

g
4

8
.0

0

8
9

8
0

N
IC

O
R

U
s
a

g
e

8
9

3
.0

6

8
9

8
1

O
v
e

rD
ri

v
e

, 
In

c
.

A
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

2
,1

2
8

.7
7

8
9

8
2

P
a

d
d

o
c
k
 P

u
b

lic
a

ti
o

n
s

R
P

F
 -

 C
le

a
n

in
g

 S
e

rv
ic

e
6

4
.4

0

8
9

8
3

P
D

Q
/S

m
a

rt
D

e
p

lo
y

S
m

a
rt

 D
e
p

lo
y
 

1
,1

6
6

.2
5

8
9

8
4

T
h

e
 P

e
n

w
o

rt
h

y
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y

B
o

o
k
s
 &

 S
ta

y
 S

h
a

rp
 K

it
s

7
7

2
.7

9

8
9

8
5

S
ik

ic
h

 L
L

P
A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
1

,6
5

0
.0

0

8
9

8
6

S
ta

p
le

s
 A

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

K
it
c
h

e
n

, 
O

ff
ic

e
, 

C
o
p

ie
r 

&
 J

a
n

it
o

ri
a

l 
S

u
p

p
lie

s
1

,3
2

7
.2

3

8
9

8
7

T
e

rm
in

ix
 A

n
d

e
rs

o
n

P
e

s
t 

C
o
n

tr
o

l
1

7
2

.8
1

8
9

8
8

T
h

o
m

a
s
 K

lis
e

 /
 C

ri
m

s
o

n
 M

u
lt
im

e
d

ia
V

id
e

o
 G

a
m

e
s

7
0

0
.2

3

8
9

8
9

V
e

ri
z
o

n
U

s
a

g
e

1
,7

4
4

.9
5

8
9

9
1

E
s
m

e
ra

ld
a

 V
ill

a
lp

a
n

d
o

C
2
E

2
6

3
.2

6

8
9

9
2

V
is

u
a

l 
Im

a
g

e
 P

h
o

to
g

ra
p

h
y

P
la

q
u

e
6

4
.2

5

8
9

9
3

W
IL

IU
G

 -
 C

/O
 M

ie
k
o

 F
u

jiu
ra

-L
a

n
d

e
rs

S
p

ri
n

g
 C

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e

1
2

0
.0

0

8
9

9
4

D
a
v
id

 W
y
lly

P
ro

g
ra

m
: 

M
e

d
ic

a
re

 1
0

1
5

0
.0

0

8
9

9
5

V
ill

a
g

e
 o

f 
L

is
le

M
o

n
th

ly
 I

n
te

rn
e

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

4
5

0
.0

0

8
9

9
6

V
ill

a
g

e
 o

f 
L

is
le

U
s
a

g
e

1
0

7
.1

6

S
u

b
 T

o
ta

l
6
0
,2

9
8
.3

1
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
T

O
T

A
L

2
6
8
,7

0
2
.8

3
$
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

25 



M
o

n
th

ly
 C

ir
cu

la
ti

o
n

 R
e

p
o

rt
 -

 A
p

ri
l 2

0
2

5

A
p

r-
2

5
Y

T
D

 F
Y

 2
3

/2
4

Y
T

D
 F

Y
 2

4
/2

5
Y

T
D

 %
 C

h
an

ge

C
h

ec
ko

u
ts

R
e

n
e

w
al

s
TO

TA
LS

A
d

u
lt

 N
o

n
-P

ri
n

t
2

,0
9

1
2

,4
5

8
4

,5
4

9
5

1
,9

2
3

4
6

,8
9

0
-9

.6
9

%

A
d

u
lt

 P
ri

n
t

4
,1

0
5

4
,0

2
5

8
,1

3
0

8
5

,6
7

6
8

4
,6

0
6

-1
.2

5
%

A
d

u
lt

 T
o

ta
l

6
,1

9
6

6
,4

8
3

1
2

,6
7

9
1

3
7

,5
9

9
1

3
1

,4
9

6
-4

.4
4

%
YS

 N
o

n
-P

ri
n

t
5

7
7

1
,0

6
9

1
,6

4
6

1
6

,3
6

1
1

5
,7

7
1

-3
.6

1
%

YS
 P

ri
n

t
7

,2
9

7
7

,4
5

4
1

4
,7

5
1

1
3

9
,7

1
0

1
4

6
,7

7
7

5
.0

6
%

To
ta

l Y
S

7
,8

7
4

8
,5

2
3

1
6

,3
9

7
1

5
6

,0
7

1
1

6
2

,5
4

8
4

.1
5

%

D
ig

it
al

 M
ed

ia
O

ve
rd

ri
ve

5
,8

3
7

5
,8

3
7

5
1

,3
1

1
5

6
,8

3
4

1
0

.7
6

%

h
o

o
p

la
3

,0
8

0
3

,0
8

0
2

3
,9

8
4

2
9

,1
9

7
2

1
.7

4
%

O
ve

rd
ri

ve
 M

ag
az

in
es

9
6

8
9

6
8

5
,0

1
2

6
,8

2
5

3
6

.1
7

%

P
re

ss
R

e
ad

er
3

2
3

3
2

3
7

,3
3

8
3

,3
8

6
-5

3
.8

6
%

K
an

o
p

y
3

9
6

3
9

6
3

,2
5

5
3

,7
1

0
1

3
.9

8
%

To
ta

l D
ig

it
al

1
0

,6
0

4
0

1
0

,6
0

4
9

0
,9

0
0

9
9

,9
5

2
9

.9
6

%
Su

b
to

ta
l P

ri
n

t 
+ 

N
o

n
-P

ri
n

t/
D

ig
it

al
2

4
,6

7
4

1
5

,0
0

6
3

9
,6

8
0

3
8

4
,5

7
0

3
9

3
,9

9
6

2
.4

5
%

C
o

m
p

u
te

r/
Te

ch
 S

es
si

o
n

s 
Lo

gi
n

s 
*

1
,3

8
3

1
,3

8
3

1
1

,6
8

8
1

3
,5

5
2

1
5

.9
5

%

D
at

ab
as

e 
U

sa
ge

/U
n

iq
u

e 
Lo

gi
n

s
7

,9
2

5
7

,9
2

5
6

8
,7

9
6

6
6

,2
7

3
-3

.6
7

%
W

ir
el

es
s 

U
se

1
,4

8
0

1
,4

8
0

1
1

,6
0

1
1

3
,4

1
2

1
5

.6
1

%
Sc

an
n

X
 s

es
si

o
n

s/
jo

b
s

2
4

8
2

4
8

2
,5

5
6

3
,0

2
2

1
8

.2
3

%

M
u

se
u

m
 A

d
ve

n
tu

re
 P

as
se

s
4

7
4

7
3

2
3

3
4

9
8

.0
5

%

To
ta

l I
T/

R
es

o
u

rc
e 

Se
ss

io
n

s
1

1
,0

8
3

0
1

1
,0

8
3

9
4

,9
6

4
9

6
,6

0
8

1
.7

3
%

To
ta

l C
ir

cu
la

ti
o

n
3

5
,7

5
7

1
5

,0
0

6
5

0
,7

6
3

4
7

9
,5

3
4

4
9

0
,6

0
4

2
.3

1
%

B
o

rr
o

w
er

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

A
p

ri
l 2

0
2

5
 T

o
ta

l
Y

T
D

 2
3

/2
4

Y
T

D
 2

4
/2

5
Y

T
D

 %
 C

h
an

ge
N

ew
 L

ib
ra

ry
 C

ar
d

s 
A

d
d

ed
1

2
4

1
,6

0
0

1
,4

1
1

-1
1

.8
1

%
* 

Se
ss

io
n

s 
w

er
e 

ch
an

ge
d

 f
ro

m
 2

 t
o

 4
 h

o
u

rs
 o

n
 8

/3
1

/2
3

.

M
o

n
th

ly
 B

o
rr

o
w

e
rs

2
,7

8
2

2
8

,2
5

1
2

8
,3

7
6

0
.4

4
%

To
ta

l #
 R

e
gi

st
er

ed
 B

o
rr

o
w

e
rs

1
1

,3
7

4
9

,6
5

5
1

1
,3

7
4

1
7

.8
0

%

In
te

rL
ib

ra
ry

 L
o

an
s

M
at

er
ia

ls
 S

en
t

6
6

4
9

7
4

7
9

-3
.6

2
%

M
at

er
ia

ls
 R

ec
ei

ve
d

2
7

2
3

,5
4

0
3

,0
1

9
-1

4
.7

2
%

P
o

la
ri

s/
C

at
al

o
g 

H
o

ld
s

H
o

ld
s 

P
la

ce
d

2
,8

7
6

2
9

,3
2

3
2

9
,8

6
1

1
.8

3
%

H
o

ld
s 

C
h

ec
ke

d
 O

u
t 

2
,3

1
3

2
3

,3
3

7
2

4
,2

2
1

3
.7

9
%

P
ic

k-
U

p
 W

in
d

o
w

 S
er

vi
ce

 S
ta

ts

# 
o

f 
P

at
ro

n
s/

U
se

rs
2

1
2

3
0

2
1

0
-8

.7
0

%
# 

o
f 

It
e

m
s 

P
ic

ke
d

 U
p

/C
h

ec
ke

d
 O

u
t

4
7

6
4

6
5

3
0

-1
7

.9
6

%

26 



Li
sl

e 
Li

b
ra

ry
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

- 
P

ro
gr

am
 a

n
d

 S
er

vi
ce

 S
ta

ti
st

ic
s 

- 
A

p
ri

l 2
0

2
5

Li
b

ra
ry

 W
id

e
A

d
u

lt
Y

o
u

th
 

C
ir

c
Li

te
ra

cy
TO

TA
L

Y
TD

 F
Y

2
3

/2
4

Y
TD

 F
Y

2
4

/2
5

 %
 C

h
an

ge

Li
b

ra
ry

 E
ve

n
t 

St
at

is
ti

cs
 

St
af

f 
Fa

ci
lit

at
ed

 P
ro

gr
am

s
8

5
4

2
5

2
8

9
6

2
2

7
4

1
1

9
.1

3
%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

1
0

4
1

,1
5

3
3

2
1

5
1

,3
0

4
8

,2
9

4
1

0
,2

2
7

2
3

.3
1

%
C

o
m

p
u

te
r/

Te
ch

n
o

lo
gy

 P
ro

gr
am

s
2

0
2

2
2

2
2

0
.0

0
%

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

5
0

5
1

4
4

1
7

8
2

3
.6

1
%

P
er

fo
rm

er
/S

p
ea

ke
r/

A
u

th
o

r
3

0
3

3
7

4
5

2
1

.6
2

%
A

tt
en

d
ee

s
5

0
0

5
0

7
3

5
9

9
1

3
4

.8
3

%

LL
D

 E
ve

n
ts

 (
Su

m
R

d
, R

SG
, N

at
lL

ib
W

k,
 w

h
o

le
 L

ib
 e

ve
n

t)
1

1
3

3
0

.0
0

%
A

tt
en

d
ee

s
2

0
0

2
0

0
1

,7
0

0
1

,3
5

0
-2

0
.5

9
%

To
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
P

ro
gr

am
s 

1
1

3
5

4
2

5
2

9
5

6
8

4
8

1
1

1
8

.5
7

%

To
ta

l P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 b
y 

P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g
2

0
0

1
5

9
1

,1
5

3
3

2
1

5
1

,5
5

9
1

0
,8

7
3

1
2

,7
4

6
1

7
.2

3
%

R
ef

e
re

n
ce

 Q
u

es
ti

o
n

s
1

,2
9

2
1

,2
2

9
1

,5
4

4
4

,0
6

5
4

3
,0

1
2

4
1

,2
5

1
-4

.0
9

%
V

o
lu

n
te

er
 H

o
u

rs
   

7
.5

0
1

1
.0

0
1

8
.5

0
6

3
8

.0
0

7
5

6
.5

0
1

8
.5

7
%

.
N

o
ta

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
1

7
1

7
3

2
6

2
8

1
-1

3
.8

0
%

O
u

tr
ea

ch
 S

er
vi

ce
 S

ta
ti

st
ic

s 
O

u
tr

ea
ch

 V
is

it
s 

0
1

3
0

1
3

7
2

1
1

7
6

2
.5

0
%

P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 b
y 

O
u

tr
ea

ch
 V

is
it

s
0

3
7

4
0

3
7

4
5

,4
1

6
5

,5
5

2
2

.5
1

%
H

o
m

e 
D

el
iv

er
y 

D
at

es
 

3
3

2
2

2
2

0
.0

0
%

P
at

ro
n

s 
Se

rv
ed

 v
ia

 H
o

m
e 

D
el

iv
er

y
1

3
8

1
3

8
9

8
3

9
5

4
-2

.9
5

%
To

ta
l O

u
tr

ea
ch

 P
ro

gr
am

s
3

1
3

0
1

6
9

4
1

3
9

4
7

.8
7

%
To

ta
l P

at
ro

n
s 

Se
rv

ed
 w

it
h

 O
u

tr
ea

ch
 S

er
vi

ce
s

1
3

8
3

7
4

0
5

1
2

6
,3

9
9

6
,5

0
6

1
.6

7
%

C
iv

ic
 F

ac
ili

ty
 U

se
 

Li
te

ra
cy

/T
u

to
ri

n
g 

R
o

o
m

 U
se

 (
p

at
ro

n
 c

o
u

n
t)

3
0

2
6

5
2

9
0

9
.4

3
%

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
O

u
ts

id
e 

G
ro

u
p

s 
U

si
n

g 
M

ee
ti

n
g 

Sp
ac

e 
5

6
3

6
2

4
4

2
2

2
.1

0
%

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
G

in
kg

o
 &

 M
ap

le
 S

tu
d

y 
R

o
o

m
 R

es
er

va
ti

o
n

s*
7

2
7

7
7

0
9

8
2

0
.7

8
%

P
at

ro
n

s 
En

te
ri

n
g 

B
u

ild
in

g 
1

1
0

,1
6

7
1

1
2

,9
3

9
1

0
2

,7
6

4
-9

.0
1

%
Fr

ie
n

d
's

 S
p

o
n

so
re

d
 P

ro
gr

am
s 

0
0

0
--

A
tt

en
d

ee
s

0
0

0
--

So
ci

al
 M

ed
ia

 U
se

Fa
ce

b
o

o
k 

(d
ai

ly
 p

ag
e 

co
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

)
6

8
3

9
,0

4
2

5
,7

7
3

-3
6

.1
5

%
X

 (
a.

k.
a.

 T
w

it
te

r)
 F

o
llo

w
e

rs
1

,0
1

7
1

,0
6

7
1

,0
1

7
-4

.6
9

%

In
st

ag
ra

m
 L

ik
es

6
8

3
5

,6
1

3
4

,7
4

1
-1

5
.5

4
%

Fl
ic

kr
 V

ie
w

s
4

,6
7

8
7

6
,9

7
9

5
6

,3
1

0
-2

6
.8

5
%

Yo
u

Tu
b

e 
V

ie
w

s
7

,5
7

2
7

2
,1

6
0

8
5

,4
3

4
1

8
.4

0
%

eB
la

st
 E

n
ga

ge
m

en
t

8
6

2
7

,3
4

8
7

,2
2

8
-1

.6
3

%

To
ta

l L
LD

 A
p

p
 D

o
w

n
lo

ad
s

9
8

2
9

2
9

9
8

2
5

.7
1

%

To
ta

l L
LD

 A
p

p
 S

es
si

o
n

s
4

,9
2

0
3

9
,8

1
9

4
7

,7
5

1
1

9
.9

2
%

1
 T

h
e 

LL
D

 h
as

 a
d

ju
st

e
d

 t
h

e 
la

st
 F

Y 
to

ta
ls

 t
o

 r
ef

le
ct

 m
o

re
 a

cc
u

ra
te

 d
at

a.

* 
N

ew
 s

ta
t 

as
 o

f 
M

ar
ch

 2
0

2
4

.

27 



Lisle Library District 

Capital Improvement Program 

 

May Board Report (5/14/2025) 

 

Page 1 

 

 

General Capital Improvement Program 

 

A. HVAC Progress Report 

 

1. BAS Update 

• Expect to be Substantially Complete by Friday: May 16, 2025. 

• Training on the system will occur over the next two weeks.  

• Punchlist/final completion will carry on through May.  

 

2. HVAC (Condensing Unit) Update 

• Two of the four units have been installed. The balance of the work is in progress.  

• Completion of the system is pending delivery of final piping accessories to 1 Source.  

• Work is expected to be completed prior to the June Board Meeting.  

28 



29 



30 



Hokusai in Lisle 
Volunteer Art Project 

31 



32 



FLSA Job Title Minimum Maximum

E Library Director 107,620.50$  161,382.00$    

55.19$           82.76$             

E Assistant Director 83,089.50$    124,644.00$    

42.61$           63.92$             

E Department Directors|IT Manager 73,027.50$    109,551.00$    

 37.45$           56.18$             

E Assistant Director Adult Services|Youth Services|Tech Services 56,433.00$    84,571.50$      

  28.94$           43.37$             

E Assistant Director Circulation 49,549.50$    74,314.50$      

  25.41$           38.11$             

E Librarian 49,549.50$    74,314.50$      

 25.41$           38.11$             

E IT Assistant|Administrative Office Manager 43,543.50$    65,325.00$      

 22.33$           33.50$             

E Graphics/Video Specialist 40,872.00$    59,260.50$      

 Social Media Specialist 20.96$           30.39$             

NE Paraprofessional 40,872.00$    59,260.50$      

  20.96$           30.39$             

NE Library Associate|Facility Monitor 33,871.50$    47,775.00$      

  17.37$           24.50$             

NE Library Page 30,127.50$    37,303.50$      

15.45$           19.13$             

2025 - 2026

   
DRAFT

33 



 
RAILS job starting salary comparisons 
Counties: DuPage, Kane, Will 
Date range: March 2025 -- Present 
 
 

The below hourly wages are recently posted RAILS ads for the majority of job 
positions at the LLD.   
 
Page 
 

• Villa Park Public Library • DuPage County - $15.50 
 
Associate 
 

• Westmont Public Library • DuPage County - $16.02 

• Hinsdale Public Library • DuPage County - $17.50 

• Sugar Grove Public Library District • Kane County - $17/hr 
 
Paraprofessional 
 

• Bartlett Public Library District • DuPage County - $21.93 

• Indian Prairie Public Library • DuPage County - $20.28 

• Elmhurst University - A.C. Buehler Library • DuPage County - $20 - $21 
 
Librarian 
 

• White Oak Library District • Will County - $23.00/hour 

• Frankfort Public Library District • Will County - $22.75-26.50 

• Carol Stream Public Library • DuPage County - $24/hour 
 
 
 

34 



To: LLD Board of Trustees 
From: Tatiana Weinstein, LLD Director 
Date: May 16, 2025 

 
 

2025/2026 DRAFT LLD WORKING BUDGET  
 

The draft 25/26 LLD Working Budget covers projected expense and revenue categories. LLD 
Administrative staff have compiled this data. Administration has consulted with department 
managers regarding departmental requests. The LLD’s financial advisors and other outsourced 
professionals have reviewed this data and provided their recommendations.  
 

 
EXPENSE CATEGORIES 

EMPLOYEE 
Salaries and health care benefits represent the largest budgeted 
(and actual) expenditure in the Corporate Fund. ILA’s Standards 
for Illinois Public Libraries manual references that salaries alone 
can comprise up to 60% of the budget. Salaries plus benefits can 
comprise up to 70% of the budget.1 
 
The LLD currently employs 51 staff, half of which receive health 
insurance. Total employee costs include performance increases 
and the minimum wage adjustment (aligned with the State target 
for 2025). The IMRF rate has also increased. 
The LLD shows that salaries will comprise 49% of total budgeted 
expenses. Salaries plus benefits will comprise 62.4% of budgeted expenses.  

 
SUMMARY: Total budgeted employee costs show an increase of 4.4% 

 
BUILDING 
Building costs include all utilities, maintenance contracts such as landscaping/HVAC/elevators, 
cleaning services, rubbish removal, phone system, as well as non-contractual building repair work. 
The building cost line total shows an increase of 17.65%.  This budget to budget increase is 
primarily due to not having a stable fire monitoring service from last year to this year, and an 
allowance for more robust cleaning services for the LLD.  
 

SUMMARY: Total budgeted building costs show an increase of 17.65%  
 
OPERATING 
Operating costs include postage, printing, banking fees, and processing.  The operating cost line 
total shows an increase of 3.29%. Projected expenses align with inflationary projections.  
  

SUMMARY: Total budgeted operating costs shows an increase of 3.29%  
 
 
 

                                                           
1 The library compensates staff in a fair and equitable manner. Salaries alone typically account for up to 60 
percent of the total budget. Salaries plus fringe benefits (FICA pension and health insurance) account for up to 70 
percent. (Pg. 9: Serving Our Public 4.0; Standards for Illinois Public Libraries, 2019). 

EMPLOYEE COSTS

SALARIES HEALTH IMRF/FICA

35 



To: LLD Board of Trustees 
From: Tatiana Weinstein, LLD Director 
Date: May 16, 2025 

 
 
INSURANCE 
Insurance costs include bonding (every two years for Notary), property damage, and workers 
compensation. This category shows an increase of 7.10% per the recommendation of the LLD’s risk 
agency, LIRA. Please note that comparisons with audited actuals and projected unaudited actuals 
presents a discrepancy in line item totals (calendar year vs fiscal year). 

 
SUMMARY: Total budgeted insurance costs show an increase of 7.10% 

 
CONTRACTUAL 
Contractual costs include attorney fees, audit costs, investment agency fees, outsourced IT 
services, IT licensing, and payroll charges. IT licensing costs/contracts may extend beyond one 
year. Those expenses will be audited into the next fiscal year. Other lines reflect a general, 
professional services increase between 3-5%. Investment agency expenses are based on the 
amount invested (after renovation, the amounts invested are lower).  

 
SUMMARY: Total budgeted contractual costs show an increase of 4.78% 

 
PERSONNEL DEVELOPMENT 
Personnel Development costs include staff and Trustee dues, conference attendance, continuing 
education/training, and staff recognition. The proposed decrease is primarily due to not receiving 
requests for formal certifications/degrees from departments for the forthcoming year and the 
ability to provide training opportunities via webinar.   
 
SUMMARY: Total budgeted personnel development costs show a decrease of 18.10% 
 
EQUIPMENT 
Equipment costs include the Polaris database and overlay, technology purchases, minor facility 
fixtures/gear, and minor repairs. The LLD remained under budget in the last fiscal and does not 
anticipate a marked increase in FY25/26.   
 

SUMMARY: Total budged equipment costs are flat 
 
LIBRARY MATERIALS 
Library Materials costs include all physical materials, digital content, and interlibrary loan costs. 
This line remains essentially flat; even when increasing digital content by 5%. The databases line 
has decreased by negotiating better subscription rates with vendors.  

 
SUMMARY: Total budgeted materials costs show an increase of 0.16% 

 
PROGRAMS 
The Programs category includes all LLD programs, community relations costs, and supplies for such 
activities. Programs include community-wide events, Summer Read, Fall Fest, Winter Read, 
National Library Week, and preparatory work for the programs. The LLD has spent within budgeted 
expenses year after year, but with added awareness campaigns, the LLD seeks a modest increase 
of 6.38%.   

SUMMARY: Total budgeted programs costs show an increase of 6.38% 

36 



To: LLD Board of Trustees 
From: Tatiana Weinstein, LLD Director 
Date: May 16, 2025 

 
CONTINGENCY 

SUMMARY: Total budgeted contingency costs remain flat 
 
RESTRICTED 
The Restricted Expenses category includes restricted operating and IMRF expenses. Restricted 
operating costs include Illinois Per Capita Grant, other grants, gifts, debt repayment, and transfers 
to Special Reserve. Restricted IMRF expenses allow for supplemental funding. IMRF funding is 
healthy, thus reducing the amount in this line (IMRF rates are updated on a calendar schedule). 
Transfer to Special Reserve remains flat.   

 
SUMMARY: Total budgeted restricted operating costs show a decrease of 15.13% 

 
SPECIAL RESERVE 
Special Reserve expenses include capital improvement project costs, emergency expenses, and 
facility enhancements. This category shows a 48.03% increase due to the professional and outdoor 
development costs for the Kingston lot as well as a budgeted allowance for a server room 
generator.   

 
SUMMARY: Total budgeted special reserve costs show an increase of 48.03% 

 
 

REVENUE CATEGORIES 
CORPORATE 
The tax levy was increased per the renovation project plan (per CPI) and conservative personal 
property replacement taxes and interest income projections were provided by the LLD’s financial 
advisors. These factors contribute to a 2.52% increase in corporate revenue.  
  

SUMMARY: Total budgeted corporate revenues show an increase of 2.52% 
  
IMRF 
The IMRF Fund shows an increase due to reduced levy amounts in previous fiscal years. Every 
calendar turn, the LLD receives an updated rate for IMRF, which can significantly affect how the 
LLD levies for this fund.  
 

SUMMARY: Total budgeted IMRF revenues show an increase 53.81%  
 
FICA 
The FICA Fund shows a negligible increase. This increase aligns with Social Security/Medicare rates 
and increased interest revenue.  
 

SUMMARY: Total budgeted FICA revenues show an increase of .14%  
 
SPECIAL RESERVE 
The Special Reserve Fund shows a decrease because it cannot earn as much interest due to having 
less funds within the fund.  
 

SUMMARY: Total budgeted SPECIAL RESERVE revenues show a 2.27% decrease 

37 



To: LLD Board of Trustees 
From: Tatiana Weinstein, LLD Director 
Date: May 16, 2025 

 
 

 
BUDGET RECAP 

 
 

EXPENSES: The LLD Working Budget shows a reasonable 2.96% increase in operating expenditures 
from budget to budget. This increase accounts for inflation (CPI), staffing changes, and modest 
flexibility for operational or service needs. Budget to budget, this amounts to $140,275. It is 
difficult to precisely predict the future, therefore, the LLD plans to allow for flexibility within the 
Budget and Appropriation Ordinance in the fall.  
 
REVENUES: The LLD shows a budget to budget increase of 3.04% in revenue. Budget to budget, 
this amounts to $143,145. LLD’s financial advisors and outsourced professionals have provided 
recommendations. County determinations also factor into the budgeted tax lines. As stated above 
under EXPENSES, it is difficult to precisely forecast certain proceeds, such as earned interest 
income (volatile economy), exact amounts of potential grant funding, and other desk income 
(dependent on use).  
 

 
 

In sum, the LLD FY25/26 Working Budget is balanced. Projected expenses vs. revenues show a 
negligible $2,870 differential. The LLD maintains a conservative approach to budgeting while 
making practical financial decisions throughout the fiscal year. This approach ensures that the 
LLD’s annual financial transactions are representative, responsible, and relevant to the diverse needs 

of the District.   

38 



EX
P

EN
SE

S 
- 

D
R

A
FT

Fu
n

d
s

EX
P

EN
SE

S
 A

U
D

IT
ED

 

A
C

TU
A

LS
 2

3
-2

4
 

 L
LD

 A
ct

u
al

s 
YT

D
 

Th
ru

 A
p

ri
l 3

0
, 2

0
2

5
 

 B
U

D
G

ET
 2

4
-2

5
 

 B
U

D
G

ET
 2

5
 -

 2
6

 "+
/-

" 
Fr

o
m

 2
4

 -
 2

5
 

B
u

d
ge

t

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

EM
P

LO
Y

EE
 C

O
ST

S

SA
LA

R
IE

S
2

,1
7

0
,7

7
7

.7
3

$
   

 
1

,8
6

0
,6

3
3

.7
0

$
   

 
2

,3
1

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
2

,3
9

6
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
  

3
.5

0
%

H
EA

LT
H

 IN
S/

U
N

EM
P

3
0

1
,9

4
4

.6
1

$
   

   
 

2
6

3
,4

7
5

.8
0

$
   

   
 

3
4

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

 
3

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
  

2
.9

4
%

TO
TA

L 
SA

LA
R

Y+
IN

S
2

,4
7

2
,7

2
2

.3
4

$
   

 
2

,1
2

4
,1

0
9

.5
0

$
   

 
2

,6
5

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
2

,7
4

6
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
  

3
.4

3
%

IM
R

F
IM

R
F 

EX
P

4
9

,7
2

2
.0

9
$

   
   

   
6

0
,2

6
4

.9
6

$
   

   
   

8
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

1
1

2
,9

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

  
4

1
.1

3
%

FI
C

A
FI

C
A

 E
X

P
1

6
1

,6
9

4
.0

0
$

   
   

 
1

3
9

,0
1

8
.1

1
$

   
   

 
1

7
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
 

1
8

3
,3

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

  
2

.9
8

%

TO
TA

L 
EM

P
 C

O
ST

S 
W

 B
EN

EF
IT

S
2

,6
8

4
,1

3
8

.4
3

$
   

 
2

,3
2

3
,3

9
2

.5
7

$
   

 
2

,9
1

3
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
3

,0
4

2
,2

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
  

4
.4

4
%

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 C
O

ST
S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

IN
TE

R
N

ET
/I

N
ET

7
,2

1
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
6

,3
1

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

7
,3

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

7
,3

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

0
.0

0
%

P
H

O
N

E
1

9
,1

9
4

.8
6

$
   

   
   

1
7

,1
9

6
.1

5
$

   
   

   
2

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
2

1
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

5
.0

0
%

G
A

S
7

,8
9

0
.3

6
$

   
   

   
   

6
,6

8
3

.9
5

$
   

   
   

   
1

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

-1
6

.6
7

%

SE
W

ER
/W

A
TE

R
2

,6
9

7
.6

2
$

   
   

   
   

1
,5

2
4

.9
1

$
   

   
   

   
4

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
3

,5
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
-1

2
.5

0
%

EL
EC

TR
IC

A
L

3
7

,9
3

2
.0

2
$

   
   

   
2

8
,4

8
6

.4
7

$
   

   
   

4
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

4
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
0

.0
0

%

M
A

IN
T.

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TS

H
V

A
C

1
,7

9
1

.0
2

$
   

   
   

   
2

,3
2

6
.0

9
$

   
   

   
   

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

1
2

,5
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
1

5
0

.0
0

%

C
LE

A
N

IN
G

/P
ES

TS
/M

EC
H

A
N

IC
A

L
4

1
,1

5
7

.1
3

$
   

   
   

4
3

,3
0

7
.5

8
$

   
   

   
4

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
6

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

5
0

.0
0

%

LA
N

D
SC

A
P

E
3

4
,0

9
1

.8
8

$
   

   
   

3
2

,7
2

5
.0

0
$

   
   

   
4

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
4

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

0
.0

0
%

N
O

N
-C

O
N

TR
A

C
T 

R
EP

A
IR

S
7

9
,7

4
3

.8
4

$
   

   
   

6
7

,0
8

2
.7

9
$

   
   

   
6

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
7

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
5

.0
0

%

R
U

B
B

IS
H

 R
EM

O
V

A
L

3
,1

5
3

.3
2

$
   

   
   

   
3

,0
1

6
.5

4
$

   
   

   
   

4
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

4
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

0
.0

0
%

TO
TA

L
2

3
4

,8
6

2
.0

5
$

   
   

 
2

0
8

,6
5

9
.4

8
$

   
   

 
2

3
2

,3
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
 

2
7

3
,3

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

  
1

7
.6

5
%

O
P

ER
A

TI
N

G
 C

O
ST

S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

P
O

ST
A

G
E/

SH
IP

P
IN

G
1

4
,5

6
1

.8
0

$
   

   
   

1
6

,2
7

8
.6

7
$

   
   

   
1

4
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
1

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

7
.1

4
%

P
R

IN
TI

N
G

2
3

,0
4

5
.0

0
$

   
   

   
2

2
,1

9
4

.2
4

$
   

   
   

2
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

2
4

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
9

.0
9

%

SU
P

P
LI

ES
/P

R
O

C
ES

SI
N

G
7

2
,2

1
5

.6
8

$
   

   
   

5
5

,2
8

9
.2

2
$

   
   

   
7

6
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
7

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

-1
.3

2
%

B
A

N
K

/N
O

TI
C

ES
7

,8
9

0
.6

8
$

   
   

   
   

6
,2

2
1

.4
3

$
   

   
   

   
6

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
3

3
.3

3
%

LO
C

A
L 

TR
A

V
EL

1
8

2
.6

4
$

   
   

   
   

   
5

0
.2

9
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

5
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

4
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-2

0
.0

0
%

TO
TA

L 
1

1
7

,8
9

5
.8

0
$

   
   

 
1

0
0

,0
3

3
.8

5
$

   
   

 
1

1
8

,5
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
 

1
2

2
,4

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

  
3

.2
9

%

39 



EX
P

EN
SE

S 
- 

D
R

A
FT

FU
N

D
S

 A
U

D
IT

ED
 

A
C

TU
A

LS
 2

3
-2

4
 

 L
LD

 A
ct

u
al

s 
YT

D
 

Th
ru

 A
p

ri
l 3

0
, 2

0
2

5
 

 B
U

D
G

ET
 2

4
-2

5
 

 B
U

D
G

ET
 2

5
 -

 2
6

 "+
/-

" 
Fr

o
m

 2
4

 -
 2

5
 

B
u

d
ge

t

IN
SU

R
A

N
C

E 
C

O
ST

S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

FI
D

EL
IT

Y 
B

O
N

D
S

2
,1

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
9

8
6

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

2
,2

5
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

1
,2

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

-4
6

.6
7

%

In
su

ra
n

ce
 b

ill
ed

 o
n

 

th
e 

ca
le

n
d

ar
 y

ea
r

P
R

O
P

. D
A

M
A

G
E 

(A
LL

 P
ER

IL
)

4
2

,4
9

1
.7

7
$

   
   

   
7

1
,2

1
4

.9
0

$
   

   
   

5
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

5
7

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
9

.6
2

%

N
O

TA
R

Y 
B

O
N

D
$

0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
2

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

*

In
su

ra
n

ce
 b

ill
ed

 o
n

 

th
e 

ca
le

n
d

ar
 y

ea
r

W
O

R
K

ER
S 

C
O

M
P

3
,8

7
3

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
7

,0
1

1
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

7
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

7
,2

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

2
.8

6
%

TO
TA

L 
4

8
,4

6
4

.7
7

$
   

   
   

7
9

,2
1

1
.9

0
$

   
   

   
6

1
,2

5
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
6

5
,6

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

7
.1

0
%

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
TU

A
L 

C
O

ST
S

LE
G

A
L 

SE
R

V
IC

ES
2

,0
9

6
.2

5
$

   
   

   
   

3
,2

8
5

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
0

.0
0

%

C
O

LL
EC

TI
O

N
 A

G
EN

C
Y

6
7

0
.4

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
4

3
0

.1
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

7
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

7
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0

.0
0

%

O
U

TS
R

C
 A

C
C

T/
H

R
/I

T
1

3
2

,4
3

5
.8

8
$

   
   

 
1

6
0

,8
1

6
.6

8
$

   
   

 
1

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
 

1
6

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

  
6

.6
7

%

IN
V

ES
TM

EN
T 

A
G

EN
C

Y
1

,5
0

7
.9

1
$

   
   

   
   

1
,9

4
3

.7
8

$
   

   
   

   
4

,5
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
2

,6
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
-4

2
.2

2
%

A
C

C
T 

LI
C

EN
SE

 S
O

FT
W

A
R

E
4

,4
4

4
.5

8
$

   
   

   
   

2
,6

8
6

.9
2

$
   

   
   

   
4

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
4

,2
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
5

.0
0

%

A
U

D
IT

9
,4

5
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
9

,7
2

5
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

9
,7

2
5

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
2

.8
3

%

P
A

YR
O

LL
1

1
,8

1
1

.5
2

$
   

   
   

1
0

,2
4

3
.6

0
$

   
   

   
1

3
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
1

3
,5

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

3
.8

5
%

TO
TA

L
1

6
2

,4
1

6
.5

9
$

   
   

 
1

8
9

,1
3

1
.0

8
$

   
   

 
1

8
9

,9
2

5
.0

0
$

   
   

   
 

1
9

9
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

  
4

.7
8

%

P
ER

SO
N

N
EL

 D
EV

EL
O

P
M

EN
T

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

ST
A

FF
 D

U
ES

/C
O

N
F

9
,1

8
5

.2
9

$
   

   
   

   
1

0
,6

9
3

.8
7

$
   

   
   

1
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

1
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
0

.0
0

%

M
EM

O
R

IA
L/

R
EC

O
G

2
,1

5
2

.3
6

$
   

   
   

   
2

,3
8

5
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

3
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

4
,7

5
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

5
8

.3
3

%

IN
-S

ER
V

IC
E 

D
A

Y
1

,7
4

5
.1

0
$

   
   

   
   

1
,7

6
9

.0
3

$
   

   
   

   
2

,5
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
2

,5
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
0

.0
0

%

C
O

N
T.

 E
D

5
9

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
3

7
6

.1
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

8
,5

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

2
,5

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

-7
0

.5
9

%

TR
U

ST
EE

 D
U

ES
/C

O
N

F/
TR

A
IN

5
2

5
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
5

6
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

3
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

-3
3

.3
3

%

TO
TA

L
1

3
,6

6
6

.7
5

$
   

   
   

1
5

,7
8

4
.0

1
$

   
   

   
2

9
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
2

3
,7

5
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

-1
8

.1
0

%

EQ
U

IP
M

EN
T

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

P
O

LA
R

IS
5

2
,2

0
4

.1
4

$
   

   
   

6
5

,1
5

8
.9

4
$

   
   

   
8

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
8

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

0
.0

0
%

TE
C

H
6

2
,5

0
5

.0
3

$
   

   
   

6
6

,3
0

5
.7

1
$

   
   

   
7

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
7

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

0
.0

0
%

FA
C

IL
IT

Y
6

,8
0

9
.4

1
$

   
   

   
   

1
,5

6
5

.3
1

$
   

   
   

   
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

0
.0

0
%

M
IN

O
R

 E
Q

U
IP

3
,4

7
4

.7
3

$
   

   
   

   
1

,3
9

5
.5

5
$

   
   

   
   

3
,5

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

3
,5

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

0
.0

0
%

O
TH

ER
 F

A
C

 M
A

IN
T/

R
EP

A
IR

S
1

9
,4

2
0

.9
3

$
   

   
   

1
5

,3
4

2
.5

2
$

   
   

   
2

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
2

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

0
.0

0
%

TO
TA

L
1

4
4

,4
1

4
.2

4
$

   
   

 
1

4
9

,7
6

8
.0

3
$

   
   

 
1

8
3

,5
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
 

1
8

3
,5

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

  
0

.0
0

%

40 



EX
P

EN
SE

S 
- 

D
R

A
FT

FU
N

D
S

 A
U

D
IT

ED
 

A
C

TU
A

LS
 2

3
-2

4
 

 L
LD

 A
ct

u
al

s 
YT

D
 

Th
ru

 A
p

ri
l 3

0
, 2

0
2

5
 

 B
U

D
G

ET
 2

4
-2

5
 

 B
U

D
G

ET
 2

5
 -

 2
6

 "+
/-

" 
Fr

o
m

 2
4

 -
 2

5
 

B
u

d
ge

t

LI
B

R
A

R
Y

 M
A

TE
R

IA
LS

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

B
O

O
K

S
2

3
6

,8
8

6
.8

8
$

   
   

 
1

6
5

,9
6

3
.7

2
$

   
   

 
2

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
 

2
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

  
0

.0
0

%

D
A

TA
B

A
SE

S
1

1
1

,0
6

8
.0

2
$

   
   

 
1

1
3

,9
0

4
.6

5
$

   
   

 
1

3
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
 

1
2

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

  
-7

.4
1

%

D
O

C
 D

EL
IV

ER
Y/

IL
LS

2
4

,9
8

5
.3

7
$

   
   

   
2

5
,1

8
6

.4
7

$
   

   
   

2
6

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

2
7

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
3

.8
5

%

A
U

D
IO

/V
IS

U
A

L
1

9
4

,9
7

0
.4

2
$

   
   

 
1

6
4

,0
1

7
.6

6
$

   
   

 
1

9
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
 

2
0

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

  
5

.1
3

%

P
ER

IO
D

IC
A

LS
2

5
,3

6
6

.7
8

$
   

   
   

2
3

,4
0

9
.4

3
$

   
   

   
2

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
2

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

0
.0

0
%

TO
TA

L
5

9
3

,2
7

7
.4

7
$

   
   

 
4

9
2

,4
8

1
.9

3
$

   
   

 
6

3
1

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
 

6
3

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

  
0

.1
6

%

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

LI
B

-W
ID

E 
P

R
O

G
R

A
M

S
2

6
,1

6
7

.3
5

$
   

   
   

2
1

,4
1

3
.7

6
$

   
   

   
3

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
3

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

6
.6

7
%

C
O

M
M

 R
EL

/S
U

P
P

LI
ES

1
4

,8
3

8
.2

4
$

   
   

   
1

0
,3

3
3

.8
9

$
   

   
   

1
7

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

1
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
5

.8
8

%

TO
TA

L
4

1
,0

0
5

.5
9

$
   

   
   

3
1

,7
4

7
.6

5
$

   
   

   
4

7
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

6
.3

8
%

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

C
O

N
T

IN
G

EN
C

Y
$

0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
2

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
2

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

0
.0

0
%

R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

 E
X

P
EN

SE
S

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

G
IF

TS
5

0
0

.1
4

$
   

   
   

   
   

1
5

5
.8

9
$

   
   

   
   

   
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
0

.0
0

%

P
ER

 C
A

P
IT

A
 G

R
A

N
T

4
4

,6
6

4
.4

8
$

   
   

   
2

0
,6

4
5

.0
2

$
   

   
   

4
6

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

4
6

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
0

.0
0

%

D
EB

T 
IN

TE
R

ES
T 

EX
P

EN
SE

2
5

,8
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
2

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

2
6

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
-3

.8
5

%

D
EB

T 
P

R
IN

C
IP

A
L 

P
A

YM
EN

T
4

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

4
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
4

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
4

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

0
.0

0
%

IM
R

F 
 F

U
N

D
IN

G
2

6
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

$
0

.0
0

7
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
-6

4
.2

9
%

SU
B

TO
TA

L
1

3
6

,9
6

4
.6

2
$

   
   

 
8

5
,8

0
0

.9
1

$
   

   
   

1
8

4
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

 
1

3
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
  

-2
5

.0
0

%

TR
A

N
SF

ER
 T

O
 S

P
EC

 R
ES

R
V

1
2

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
 

1
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
 

1
2

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

 
1

2
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
  

0
.0

0
%

TO
TA

L 
SP

EC
IA

L 
R

ES
ER

V
E

1
2

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
 

1
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
 

1
2

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

 
1

2
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
  

0
.0

0
%

TO
TA

L 
R

ES
TR

IC
TE

D
 E

X
P

EN
SE

S
2

5
6

,9
6

4
.6

2
$

   
   

 
1

8
5

,8
0

0
.9

1
$

   
   

 
3

0
4

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
 

2
5

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

  
-1

5
.1

3
%

TO
TA

L 
B

U
D

G
ET

 W
/O

 T
R

A
N

S 
T

O
 S

R
4

,1
7

7
,1

0
6

.3
1

$
   

3
,6

7
6

,0
1

1
.4

1
$

   
4

,6
1

4
,4

7
5

.0
0

$
   

   
4

,7
5

4
,7

5
0

.0
0

$
   

   
 

3
.0

4
%

TO
TA

L 
B

U
D

G
ET

 E
X

P
EN

SE
S

4
,2

9
7

,1
0

6
.3

1
$

   
3

,7
7

6
,0

1
1

.4
1

$
   

4
,7

3
4

,4
7

5
.0

0
$

   
   

4
,8

7
4

,7
5

0
.0

0
$

   
   

 
2

.9
6

%

41 



EX
P

EN
SE

S 
- 

D
R

A
FT

FU
N

D
S

 A
U

D
IT

ED
 

A
C

TU
A

LS
 2

3
-2

4
 

 L
LD

 A
ct

u
al

s 
YT

D
 

Th
ru

 A
p

ri
l 3

0
, 2

0
2

5
 

 B
U

D
G

ET
 2

4
-2

5
 

 B
U

D
G

ET
 2

5
 -

 2
6

 "+
/-

" 
Fr

o
m

 2
4

 -
 2

5
 

B
u

d
ge

t

SP
EC

IA
L 

R
ES

ER
V

E
SP

EC
IA

L 
R

ES
ER

V
E

C
O

N
SU

LT
IN

G
$

0
.0

0
1

4
,8

0
7

.5
0

$
   

   
   

2
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

3
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
5

0
.0

0
%

FA
C

IL
IT

Y/
C

A
M

P
U

S
$

0
.0

0
1

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

1
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

1
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
0

.0
0

%

FU
R

N
IT

U
R

E/
EQ

U
IP

$
0

.0
0

1
8

,4
7

1
.0

0
$

   
   

   
2

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
2

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

0
.0

0
%

G
EN

ER
A

TO
R

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

*

SE
C

U
R

IT
Y 

SY
ST

EM
S

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

*

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

EX
P

EN
SE

2
1

0
,5

0
5

.7
8

$
   

   
 

8
7

,5
0

5
.0

0
$

   
   

   
7

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
 

1
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

  
4

2
.8

6
%

TO
TA

L
2

1
0

,5
0

5
.7

8
$

   
   

 
1

3
5

,7
8

3
.5

0
$

   
   

 
7

6
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
 

1
,1

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

  
4

8
.0

3
%

B
Y

 F
U

N
D

 A
U

D
IT

ED
 A

C
TU

A
LS

 

2
3

-2
4

 

 L
LD

 A
ct

u
al

s 
YT

D
 

Th
ru

 A
p

ri
l 3

0
, 2

0
2

5
 

 B
U

D
G

ET
 2

4
-2

5
 

 B
U

D
G

ET
 2

5
 -

 2
6

 "+
/-

" 
Fr

o
m

 2
4

 -
 2

5
 

B
u

d
ge

t

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

4
,0

8
5

,6
9

0
.2

2
$

   
 

3
,5

7
6

,7
2

8
.3

4
$

   
 

4
,4

7
6

,4
7

5
.0

0
$

   
   

4
,5

7
8

,5
5

0
.0

0
$

   
   

  
2

.2
8

%

IM
R

F
4

9
,7

2
2

.0
9

$
   

   
   

6
0

,2
6

4
.9

6
$

   
   

   
8

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
1

1
2

,9
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
  

4
1

.1
3

%

FI
C

A
1

6
1

,6
9

4
.0

0
$

   
   

 
1

3
9

,0
1

8
.1

1
$

   
   

 
1

7
8

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
 

1
8

3
,3

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

  
2

.9
8

%

SP
EC

IA
L 

R
ES

ER
V

E
2

1
0

,5
0

5
.7

8
$

   
   

 
1

3
5

,7
8

3
.5

0
$

   
   

 
7

6
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
 

1
,1

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

  
4

8
.0

3
%

TO
TA

L
4

,5
0

7
,6

1
2

.0
9

$
   

 
3

,9
1

1
,7

9
4

.9
1

$
   

 
5

,4
9

4
,4

7
5

.0
0

$
   

   
5

,9
9

9
,7

5
0

.0
0

$
   

   
  

9
.2

0
%

TO
TA

L 
FU

N
D

S 
W

/O
 S

P
EC

 R
ES

4
,2

9
7

,1
0

6
.3

1
$

   
 

3
,7

7
6

,0
1

1
.4

1
$

   
 

4
,7

3
4

,4
7

5
.0

0
$

   
   

4
,8

7
4

,7
5

0
.0

0
$

   
   

  
2

.9
6

%

42 



R
EV

EN
U

ES
 D

R
A

FT

FU
N

D
S

R
EV

EN
U

ES
 A

u
d

it
ed

 A
ct

u
al

s 

2
3

 -
 2

4
 

 A
ct

u
al

s 
YT

D
 T

h
ru

 

A
p

ri
l 3

0
, 2

0
2

5
 

 B
U

D
G

ET
 2

4
 -

 2
5

 
 B

U
D

G
ET

 2
5

 -
 2

6
 "+

/-
" 

Fr
o

m
 2

4
 -

 2
5

 

B
u

d
ge

t

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

TA
X

 L
EV

Y
$

4
,1

2
1

,9
3

4
.6

8
$

4
,2

8
3

,1
7

9
.8

8
$

4
,2

8
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
4

,4
0

1
,3

0
0

.0
0

$
   

2
.8

3
%

B
A

C
K

 T
A

X
ES

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

TI
F 

SU
R

P
LU

S
$

3
2

,1
3

8
.9

1
$

1
3

9
,5

8
8

.3
6

$
3

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

4
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
1

4
.2

9
%

P
ER

S.
 P

R
O

P
. R

EP
LA

C
EM

N
T 

TA
X

$
3

7
,4

4
1

.7
6

$
1

9
,3

2
9

.1
8

$
4

2
,7

2
0

.0
0

2
2

,5
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
-4

7
.3

3
%

TO
TA

L 
TA

X
ES

$
4

,1
9

1
,5

1
5

.3
5

$
4

,4
4

2
,0

9
7

.4
2

$
4

,3
5

7
,7

2
0

.0
0

$
4

,4
6

3
,8

0
0

.0
0

2
.4

3
%

IN
TE

R
ES

T 
EA

R
N

ED
$

8
1

,1
8

2
.7

3
$

7
6

,6
9

4
.5

9
$

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
6

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

2
0

.0
0

%

U
N

R
EA

LI
ZE

D
 G

N
/L

O
SS

 IN
V

ST
M

N
TS

$
6

,9
3

5
.2

4
$

8
,7

0
5

.6
6

$
6

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

,2
5

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
  

-7
9

.1
7

%

TO
TA

L 
IN

TE
R

ES
T

$
8

8
,1

1
7

.9
7

$
8

5
,4

0
0

.2
5

$
5

6
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
6

1
,2

5
0

.0
0

9
.3

8
%

O
TH

ER
 IN

C
O

M
E

LO
ST

 M
A

TE
R

IA
LS

$
7

4
4

.3
4

$
4

7
7

.9
2

$
1

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
  

0
.0

0
%

N
O

N
-R

ES
 F

EE
S

$
7

0
2

.4
0

$
8

8
6

.0
2

$
8

0
0

.0
0

9
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
1

2
.5

0
%

B
O

O
K

 S
A

LE
$

1
,2

3
4

.0
0

$
1

,9
6

9
.0

0
$

1
,6

0
0

.0
0

4
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

  
1

5
0

.0
0

%

FI
N

ES
/F

EE
S

$
1

,9
1

5
.7

6
$

5
0

8
.7

9
$

1
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

  
0

.0
0

%

G
IF

TS
 U

N
R

ES
TR

IC
TE

D
$

0
.0

0
$

3
4

5
.2

9
$

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

  
0

.0
0

%

G
IF

TS
/G

R
A

N
TS

 R
ES

TR
IC

TE
D

$
5

0
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
  

0
.0

0
%

EA
R

 B
U

D
 S

A
LE

S
$

5
7

5
.0

0
$

4
8

7
.0

0
$

7
0

0
.0

0
7

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

0
.0

0
%

C
O

P
IE

R
 IN

C
O

M
E

$
2

,8
0

6
.8

5
$

1
,4

1
5

.5
5

$
3

,5
0

0
.0

0
3

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
  

0
.0

0
%

P
R

IN
TI

N
G

 IN
C

O
M

E
$

4
,1

6
4

.6
2

$
3

,6
5

1
.1

2
$

4
,0

0
0

.0
0

4
,5

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

  
0

.0
0

%

O
TH

ER
 C

O
R

P
 IN

C
O

M
E

$
2

,7
3

6
.7

5
$

2
,9

1
1

.4
3

$
2

,5
0

0
.0

0
2

,5
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
  

0
.0

0
%

IL
 P

ER
 C

A
P

IT
A

 G
R

A
N

T
$

4
4

,6
6

4
.4

8
$

4
4

,9
6

7
.2

9
$

4
6

,0
0

0
.0

0
4

6
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

0
.0

0
%

 
LI

C
EN

SE
 S

TI
C

K
ER

 S
A

LE
S

$
2

,3
6

6
.7

5
$

1
,7

7
6

.2
5

$
2

,5
0

0
.0

0
2

,5
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
  

0
.0

0
%

TO
TA

L 
O

TH
ER

 IN
C

O
M

E
$

6
2

,4
1

0
.9

5
$

5
9

,3
9

5
.6

6
$

6
7

,6
0

0
.0

0
6

9
,1

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

2
.2

2
%

TO
TA

L 
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

TE
 F

U
N

D
$

4
,3

4
2

,0
4

4
.2

7
$

4
,5

8
6

,8
9

3
.3

3
$

4
,4

8
1

,3
2

0
.0

0
$

4
,5

9
4

,1
5

0
.0

0
2

.5
2

%

43 



R
EV

EN
U

ES
 D

R
A

FT

FU
N

D
S

R
EV

EN
U

ES
 A

u
d

it
ed

 A
ct

u
al

s 

2
3

 -
 2

4
 

 A
ct

u
al

s 
YT

D
 T

h
ru

 

A
p

ri
l 3

0
, 2

0
2

5
 

 B
U

D
G

ET
 2

4
 -

 2
5

 
 B

U
D

G
ET

 2
5

 -
 2

6
 "+

/-
" 

Fr
o

m
 2

4
 -

 2
5

 

B
u

d
ge

t

IM
R

F
TA

X
 L

EV
Y

$
0

.0
0

$
5

0
,0

8
8

.5
0

$
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

8
0

,8
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
6

1
.6

0
%

B
A

C
K

 T
A

X
ES

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

P
ER

S.
 P

R
O

P
. R

EP
LA

C
EM

N
T 

TA
X

$
2

,1
6

0
.8

6
$

1
,1

1
5

.5
4

$
2

,4
7

0
.0

0
1

,2
5

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
  

-4
9

.3
9

%

TO
TA

L 
TA

X
ES

$
2

,1
6

0
.8

6
$

5
1

,2
0

4
.0

4
$

5
2

,4
7

0
.0

0
8

2
,0

5
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

5
6

.3
8

%

IN
TE

R
ES

T 
EA

R
N

ED
$

3
,5

9
2

.0
0

$
2

,5
9

8
.2

6
$

2
,5

0
0

.0
0

2
,5

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

  
0

.0
0

%

TO
TA

L 
IN

TE
R

ES
T

$
3

,5
9

2
.0

0
$

2
,5

9
8

.2
6

$
2

,5
0

0
.0

0
2

,5
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
  

0
.0

0
%

TO
TA

L 
IM

R
F

$
5

,7
5

2
.8

6
$

5
3

,8
0

2
.3

0
$

5
4

,9
7

0
.0

0
8

4
,5

5
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

5
3

.8
1

%

FI
C

A
TA

X
 L

EV
Y

$
1

7
2

,9
5

9
.0

6
$

1
7

6
,0

1
9

.9
4

$
1

7
6

,2
2

5
.0

0
1

7
7

,2
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

 
0

.5
5

%

B
A

C
K

 T
A

X
ES

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

P
ER

S.
 P

R
O

P
. R

EP
LA

C
EM

N
T 

TA
X

$
3

3
9

.5
1

$
1

7
5

.2
7

$
3

9
0

.0
0

1
5

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
-6

1
.5

4
%

TO
TA

L 
TA

X
ES

$
1

7
3

,2
9

8
.5

7
$

1
7

6
,1

9
5

.2
1

$
1

7
6

,6
1

5
.0

0
$

1
7

7
,3

5
0

.0
0

0
.4

2
%

IN
TE

R
ES

T 
EA

R
N

ED
$

4
,7

3
4

.3
2

$
4

,3
2

8
.9

9
$

3
,5

0
0

.0
0

3
,5

0
0

.0
0

$
   

   
   

  
0

.0
0

%

TO
TA

L 
IN

TE
R

ES
T

$
4

,7
3

4
.3

2
$

4
,3

2
8

.9
9

$
3

,5
0

0
.0

0
$

3
,5

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
%

TO
TA

L 
FI

C
A

$
1

7
8

,0
3

2
.8

9
$

1
8

0
,5

2
4

.2
0

$
1

8
0

,1
1

5
.0

0
$

1
8

0
,8

5
0

.0
0

0
.4

1
%

SP
EC

 R
ES

ER
V

E
IN

TE
R

ES
T 

EA
R

N
ED

$
1

2
,6

7
2

.3
8

$
9

,4
5

0
.2

0
$

1
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
9

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
  

-2
5

.0
0

%

R
ES

TR
. T

R
A

N
SF

R
 F

R
O

M
 C

O
R

P
.

$
1

2
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

1
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
1

2
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

2
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

 
0

.0
0

%
TO

TA
L 

SP
EC

IA
L 

R
ES

ER
V

E
$

1
3

2
,6

7
2

.3
8

$
1

0
9

,4
5

0
.2

0
$

1
3

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

$
1

2
9

,0
0

0
.0

0
-2

.2
7

%

44 



R
EV

EN
U

ES
 D

R
A

FT

B
Y

 F
U

N
D

 A
u

d
it

ed
 A

ct
u

al
s 

2
3

 -
 2

4
 

 A
ct

u
al

s 
YT

D
 T

h
ru

 

A
p

ri
l 3

0
, 2

0
2

5
 

 B
U

D
G

ET
 2

4
 -

 2
5

 
 B

U
D

G
ET

 2
5

 -
 2

6
 "+

/-
" 

Fr
o

m
 2

4
 -

 2
5

 

B
u

d
ge

t

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

$
4

,3
4

2
,0

4
4

.2
7

$
4

,5
8

6
,8

9
3

.3
3

$
4

,4
8

1
,3

2
0

.0
0

4
,5

9
4

,1
5

0
.0

0
$

   
2

.5
2

%

IM
R

F
$

5
,7

5
2

.8
6

$
5

3
,8

0
2

.3
0

$
5

4
,9

7
0

.0
0

8
4

,5
5

0
.0

0
$

   
   

   
5

3
.8

1
%

FI
C

A
$

1
7

8
,0

3
2

.8
9

$
1

8
0

,5
2

4
.2

0
$

1
8

0
,1

1
5

.0
0

1
8

0
,8

5
0

.0
0

$
   

   
 

0
.4

1
%

 
SP

EC
IA

L 
R

ES
ER

V
E

$
1

3
2

,6
7

2
.3

8
$

1
0

9
,4

5
0

.2
0

$
1

3
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

2
9

,0
0

0
.0

0
$

   
   

 
-2

.2
7

%

TO
TA

L
$

4
,6

5
8

,5
0

2
.4

0
$

4
,9

3
0

,6
7

0
.0

3
$

4
,8

4
8

,4
0

5
.0

0
4

,9
8

8
,5

5
0

.0
0

$
   

2
.8

9
%

TO
TA

L 
FU

N
D

S 
W

/O
 S

P
EC

 R
ES

$
4

,5
2

5
,8

3
0

.0
2

$
4

,8
2

1
,2

1
9

.8
3

$
4

,7
1

6
,4

0
5

.0
0

4
,8

5
9

,5
5

0
.0

0
$

   
3

.0
4

%

45 



Financial Strategies for Stronger Communities.tm

Part of PTMA Securities

Municipal Market Update
May 16, 2025

Mixed Data Continues as Markets Adjust to New Policies

After a roller coaster April, the market received a reprieve 
last week with the announcement of a trade deal with 
the United Kingdom, the first such deal following the 
implementation of President Trump’s tariffs on April 9. 
On May 12, the White House also announced a mutual 
90-day reduction on tariffs with China while further 
negotiations are held. In response, the S&P 500, 
NASDAQ, Dow Jones, and the dollar surged.

CPI for April, released on May 13, rose 2.3% on an annual 
basis, less than the 2.4% economists had expected 
and the lowest level since February 2021. On a month-
over-month basis, CPI rose by 0.2%, which was lower 
than economists’ expectations of 0.3%. Core CPI, which 
excludes volatile food and energy prices, increased 2.8% 
year-over-year and 0.2% from last month. April’s CPI 
data was highly anticipated as the first since President 
Trump’s tariffs were enacted and sparked fear of potential 
inflation. In response to the lower-than-expected data, 
the S&P 500 continued its upward trend, closing the day 
back in positive territory for 2025. 

The economy is proving hard to judge amid inflation fears, 
unemployment, and investor wariness over trade policy. 
Much of the data this month has been mixed. Nonfarm 
payrolls increased by a seasonally adjusted 177,000 
for the month, a sign of resilience, while GDP fell by an 
annualized 0.3% in the first quarter, pushed by a surge 
of imports as companies front-ran the tariffs. The April 
unemployment rate was 4.2%, remaining unchanged 
from March. 

The Fed decided against a preemptive rate cut in its May 
meeting, as expected, holding rates steady at 4.25%-
4.50%. The decision comes after careful consideration 
of the balance the Fed must maintain between inflation, 
which is still higher than the Fed’s 2% target, and 
maintaining a strong jobs market. Considering these 
factors, Fed Chair Jerome Powell emphasized that 
the Fed is waiting to see more economic data before 
implementing additional rate cuts. According to CME 
Group, the market is still pricing in a total of two rate cuts 
in 2025. 

After the extreme swings following the initial tariff 
announcements, the MMD has stabilized and trended 
downwards. The 10-year MMD improved from 3.56% 

on April 14 to 3.31% as of May 13. Over the same period, 
the 10-year Treasury had more mixed results, closing at 
4.475% on May 13, an increase of 0.152% from 4.323% 
on April 14. See below for a graph of MMD rates since 
January of 2023. Over the four weeks ending May 7, 
the municipal market saw a net inflow of $484 million, 
weighed down by drastic outflows during the weeks of 
April 16 and April 23. 

In January, a leaked memo from the House Ways and 
Means Committee listed removing tax exemption 
for municipalities as a possible way to help cover the 
costs of a sweeping tax bill. However, the draft tax bill 
released by the Committee on Monday afternoon did not 
list municipal tax exemption as one of its cost-cutting 
measures, so the fate of municipal tax exemption appears 
to be secure for the moment. 

If you have any questions regarding the bond market 
or your specific bond issue, please do not hesitate to 
contact a PMA advisor on the next page. 

MMD Jan. 2023 - Current

46 



Financial Strategies for Stronger Communities.tm

Part of PTMA Securities

This document was prepared by PMA Securities, LLC for clients of the firm and its affiliated PMA entities, as defined below. It is being provided for informational and/or educational 
purposes only without regard to any particular user’s investment objectives, financial situation or means. The content of this document is not to be construed as a recommendation, 
solicitation or offer to buy or sell any security, financial product or instrument, or to participate in any particular trading strategy in any jurisdiction in which such an offer or solicitation, or 
trading strategy would be illegal. Nor does it constitute any legal, tax, accounting or investment advice of services regarding the suitability or profitability of any security or investment. 
Although the information contained in this document has been obtained from third-party sources believed to be reliable, PMA cannot guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such 
information. It is understood that PMA is not responsible for any errors or omissions in the content in this document and the information is being provided to you on an “as is” basis without 
warranties or representations of any kind. The analysis or information presented may also contain hypothetical projections and/or past performance that have certain limitations. Past 
performance does not guarantee future results and no representation is made that the results are accurate or complete or that any results will be achieved.
Securities, public finance services and institutional brokerage services are offered through PMA Securities, LLC. PMA Securities, LLC is a broker-dealer and municipal advisor registered 
with the SEC and MSRB, and is a member of FINRA and SIPC. PMA Asset Management, LLC, an SEC registered investment adviser, provides investment advisory services to local 
government investment pools and separate accounts. All other products and services are provided by PMA Financial Network, LLC. PMA Financial Network, LLC, PMA Securities, LLC 
and PMA Asset Management, LLC (collectively “PMA”) are under common ownership.
Securities and public finance services offered through PMA Securities, LLC are available in CA, CO, FL, IL, IN, IA, MI , MN , MO , NE, NY, OH, OK, PA, SD, TX and WI. This document is 
not an offer of services available in any state other than those listed above, has been prepared for informational and educational purposes and does not constitute a solicitation to purchase 
or sell securities, which may be done only after client suitability is reviewed and determined. All investments mentioned herein may have varying levels of risk, and may not be suitable 
for every investor. PMA and its employees do not offer tax or legal advice. Individuals and organizations should consult with their own tax and/or legal advisors before making any tax or 
legal related investment decisions. Additional information is available upon request.
©2025 PMA Securities, LLC

Andrew Kim
Director,  
Public Finance 
PMA Securities

Stephen Adams 
Director,  
Public Finance
PMA Securities

Bob Lewis
Senior Vice President,  
Managing Director 
PMA Securities

Tammie Beckwith  
Schallmo
Senior Vice President,  
Managing Director 
PMA Securities

PMA is dedicated to staying up to date on market trends and will be ready to guide you through a dynamic and evolving market.  If you have any 
questions about the municipal bond market in general or your specific bond issue, please feel free to contact a PMA advisor below.

If you have any questions regarding the bond market or your specific bond issue, please do not hesitate  
to contact a PMA advisor below.

Part of PTMA Securities

Uncertainty around tariffs and inflation continue to be major factors in investor confidence. 

47 



   

 

 

What is the CPI (Consumer Price Index)? 
A measure of the weighted average change over a period of time in prices paid by urban consumers for 
a market basket of consumer goods and services. It is calculated on a month-to-month basis by 
incorporating new consumer spending data into historical data and tracking changes over time. 

Year over Year CPI: 
Headline CPI moved down for yet another month coming in at 2.3% on a year-over-year basis, below 
analysts’ expectations of 2.4%. Core CPI which strips out more volatile food and energy prices printed in 
line with expectations at 2.8% (YOY). On a month-over-month basis, Headline CPI as well as Core CPI 
printed at 0.2% while unadjusted CPI rose 0.3% in April. 

 
The data below reflects the YoY change in the unadjusted CPI, and the YTD cumulative change 
in the CPI.  

  
 

    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

48 



Despite concerns surrounding the current administration's tariff agenda, headline CPI continued its 
decline to its lowest levels since February of 2021 at 2.3% on a year-over-year basis.  There is a natural 
lag between policy and data as trade contracts can extend for numerous months meaning current prices 
are reflective of trade deals set multiple months ago.  In addition, some businesses may frontload 
inventory or purchase in bulk to try and avoid price increases in the near term.  Markets and business 
continue to await clarity on international trade policy as the 90-day suspension on reciprocal tariffs is set 
to expire on July 9th.  Although declining, headline CPI remains slightly above the Federal Reserve’s 
target of 2% as shelter remains a sticking point increasing 0.3% in the month of April making it the largest 
contributor to the increase. 

 

  
 

49 

mailto:akim@pmanetwork.com
mailto:kshelland@pmanetwork.com


Vi
lla

ge
 o

f L
isl

e 
| M

ay
 13

, 2
02

5 

Jo
in

t R
ev

ie
w 

Bo
ar

d 
M

ee
tin

g
EA

ST
 O

GD
EN

 A
VE

NU
E T

IF
 D

IS
TR

IC
T

50 



01
 IN

TR
OD

UC
TIO

N

2

51 



SB
 F

rie
dm

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
s, 

LL
C

W
HO

 W
E 

AR
E

•
SB

 F
rie

dm
an

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t A
dv

iso
rs

is 
a 

Ch
ica

go
-

ba
se

d
co

ns
ul

ta
nc

y 
wo

rk
in

g 
wi

th
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic 

an
d 

pr
iva

te
 se

ct
or

s i
n

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 d

isc
ip

lin
es


Sp

ec
ia

l D
ist

ric
t D

es
ig

na
tio

ns


M

ar
ke

t A
na

lys
is 

an
d 

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

Ec
on

om
ics


De

ve
lo

pm
en

t S
tra

te
gy

 a
nd

 P
la

nn
in

g


Pu

bl
ic-

P r
iva

te
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s a

nd
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n

3

Ca
itl

in
 Jo

hn
so

n,
 A

IC
P

Vi
ce

 P
re

sid
en

t
G

ill
ia

n 
G

ul
le

tt
As

so
ci

at
e

52 



SB
 F

rie
dm

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
s, 

LL
C

TIF
 D

ist
ric

ts
 a

llo
w 

fo
r f

ut
ur

e p
ro

pe
rty

 ta
x c

ol
le

ct
io

ns
 to

 fi
na

nc
e n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

wi
th

ou
t r

ai
sin

g t
ax

es
W

HA
T I

S 
TI

F?

4

TI
F 

D
IS

TR
IC

T 
TE

RM
23

 Y
EA

RS

Fr
oz

en
 

Ba
se

 V
al

ue

Gr
ow

th
 in

 
Ar

ea
 T

ax
 B

as
e

Re
ve

nu
es

 
to

 T
ax

in
g 

D
ist

ric
ts

TI
F 

D
ist

ric
t 

Ad
op

tio
n

TI
F 

D
ist

ric
t 

Ex
pi

ra
tio

n U
nf

ro
ze

n 
Re

ve
nu

es
 

to
 T

ax
in

g 
D

ist
ric

ts

PROPERTY VALUES

Re
ve

nu
es

 
to

 T
ax

in
g 

D
ist

ric
ts

53 



SB
 F

rie
dm

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
s, 

LL
C

PR
OP

OS
ED

 E
. O

GD
EN

 R
ED

EV
EL

OP
M

EN
T P

RO
JE

CT
 A

RE
A 

(R
PA

)

5

So
ur

ce
: D

uP
ag

e 
Co

un
ty

, E
sr

i, 
SB

 F
rie

dm
an

CHELSEA AVE

IVANHOE AVE

Im
pr

ov
ed

 P
ar

ce
ls

Va
ca

nt
 P

ar
ce

ls

40 PA
RC

EL
S

CU
RR

EN
T L

AN
D 

US
ES

VA
CA

NT
CO

M
M

ER
CI

AL
RE

SI
DE

NT
IA

L
PU

BL
IC

/I
NS

TIT
UT

IO
NA

L 

73 AC
RE

S

27 PR
IM

AR
Y 

BU
IL

DI
NG

S

PA
RC

EL
S

29
 IM

PR
OV

ED
11

 VA
CA

NT

Pr
op

os
ed

 R
PA

 B
ou

nd
ar

y

54 



02
 EL

IG
IB

ILI
TY

6

55 



SB
 F

rie
dm

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
s, 

LL
C

SB
 FR

IE
DM

AN
’S

 E
LI

GI
BI

LI
TY

 M
ET

HO
DO

LO
GY


Co

nd
uc

t p
ar

ce
l-b

y-
pa

rc
el

 fi
el

dw
or

k 
do

cu
m

en
tin

g 
ex

te
rn

al
 p

ro
pe

rty
 c

on
di

tio
ns


Re

vie
w 

d a
ta

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
ag

e 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 v

al
ue

 fr
om

 th
e 

Du
Pa

ge
 C

ou
nt

y 
As

se
ss

m
en

t O
ffi

ce
 


Re

vie
w 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
fro

m
 V

illa
ge

 st
af

f a
nd

 D
uP

ag
e 

Co
un

ty
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

bu
ild

in
g 

co
de

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

an
d 

pr
es

en
ce

 o
f u

til
iti

es
 


Ev

al
ua

te
 e

vid
en

ce
 o

f r
ec

en
t p

riv
at

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t


Re

vie
w 

Vi
lla

ge
 C

om
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

Pl
an

s, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

20
24

 C
om

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
Pl

an
 


Co

m
pi

le
 a

nd
 m

ap
 a

ll 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

ac
to

rs
 a

nd
 a

ss
es

s t
he

 d
ist

rib
ut

io
n 

of
 fa

ct
or

s o
n 

a 
bu

ild
in

g-
by

-b
ui

ld
in

g 
an

d/
or

 
pa

rc
el

-b
y-

pa
rc

el
 b

as
is


Re

vie
w 

te
ch

ni
ca

l m
em

o 
re

la
te

d 
to

 f l
oo

di
ng

7

56 



SB
 F

rie
dm

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
s, 

LL
C

Tw
o 

pa
th

s t
o 

el
ig

ib
ili

ty 
as

 a 
“B

lig
ht

ed
 A

re
a”

 or
 “C

on
se

rv
at

io
n A

re
a”

 ex
ist

 fo
r i

m
pr

ov
ed

 la
nd

 u
nd

er
 th

e A
ct

RP
A 

EL
IG

IB
IL

IT
Y –

 IM
PR

OV
ED

 LA
ND

8


At

 le
as

t f
iv

e 
(5

) o
f 1

3 
po

ss
ib

le
 fa

ct
or

s 
m

us
t b

e 
pr

es
en

t t
o 

a 
m

ea
ni

ng
fu

l e
xt

en
t a

nd
 re

as
on

ab
ly 

di
st

rib
ut

ed


At

 le
as

t t
hr

ee
 (3

) o
f 1

3 
po

ss
ib

le
 fa

ct
or

s 
m

us
t b

e 
pr

es
en

t t
o 

a 
m

ea
ni

ng
fu

l e
xt

en
t a

nd
 re

as
on

ab
ly 

di
st

rib
ut

ed


At

 le
as

t 5
0%

 o
f b

ui
ld

in
gs

 m
us

t b
e 

35
 y

ea
rs

 o
f a

ge
 

or
 o

ld
er

BL
IG

H
TE

D
 A

RE
A

CO
N

SE
RV

AT
IO

N
 A

RE
A

EL
IG

IB
IL

IT
Y 

FA
CT

O
RS


Di

la
pi

da
tio

n


O

bs
ol

es
ce

nc
e


D e

te
rio

ra
tio

n


Pr

es
en

ce
 o

f s
tru

ct
ur

es
 b

el
ow

 m
in

im
um

 c
od

e 
st

an
da

rd
s


Ille

ga
l u

se
 o

f s
tru

ct
ur

es


Ex

ce
ss

ive
 v

ac
an

cie
s


La

ck
 o

f v
en

til
at

io
n,

 li
gh

t o
r s

an
ita

ry
 fa

cil
iti

es


In

ad
eq

ua
te

 u
til

iti
es


La

ck
 o

f g
ro

w
th

 in
 E

AV


Ex

ce
ss

ive
 la

nd
 c

ov
er

ag
e 

an
d 

ov
er

cr
ow

di
ng

 o
f 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
cil

iti
es


De

le
te

rio
us

 la
nd

 u
se

 o
r l

ay
ou

t


En

vir
on

m
en

ta
l c

le
an

up


La

ck
 o

f c
om

m
un

ity
 p

la
nn

in
g

57 



SB
 F

rie
dm

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
s, 

LL
C

Qu
al

ifi
es

 a
s C

on
se

rv
at

io
n A

re
a;

 1
00

%
 p

er
ce

nt
 of

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 a

re
 ag

ed
 3

5 
ye

ar
s o

r o
ld

er
IM

PR
OV

ED
 P

AR
CE

LS
: E

LI
GI

BI
LI

TY
 FI

ND
IN

GS

9

CHELSEA AVE

IVANHOE AVE

Pr
op

os
ed

 R
PA

 B
ou

nd
ar

y

Pr
im

ar
y 

St
ru

ct
ur

e 
Ag

ed
 3

5 
Ye

ar
s 

or
 O

ld
er

Pr
im

ar
y 

St
ru

ct
ur

e 

So
ur

ce
: C

oS
ta

r, 
Du

Pa
ge

 C
ou

nt
y, 

Es
ri,

 S
B 

Fr
ie

dm
an

, V
illa

ge
 o

f L
isl

e

TI
F 

Pa
rc

el

•
Pr

op
os

ed
 R

PA
 q

ua
lif

ie
s 

as
 a

 “c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
ar

ea
” u

nd
er

 th
e 

Ac
t •

As
 o

f 2
02

3,
 14

 o
f t

he
 2

7 
(5

2%
) p

rim
ar

y 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 R
PA

 a
re

 o
ve

r 3
5 

ye
ar

s o
ld

•
4 

of
 13

 e
lig

ib
ili

ty
 fa

ct
or

s 
ar

e 
pr

es
en

t t
o 

a 
m

ea
ni

ng
fu

l e
xt

en
t 

an
d 

re
as

on
ab

ly 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

:
•

De
te

rio
ra

tio
n

•
La

ck
 o

f G
ro

wt
h 

in
 E

qu
al

ize
d 

As
se

ss
ed

 V
al

ue
 (“

EA
V”

)
•

In
ad

eq
ua

te
 U

til
iti

es
•

Pr
es

en
ce

 o
f S

tru
ct

ur
es

 b
el

ow
 M

in
im

um
 C

od
e 

St
an

da
rd

s

58 



SB
 F

rie
dm

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
s, 

LL
C

De
te

rio
ra

tio
n 

IM
PR

OV
ED

 P
AR

CE
LS

: E
LI

GI
BI

LI
TY

 FI
ND

IN
GS

10

CHELSEA AVE

IVANHOE AVE

So
ur

ce
: D

uP
ag

e 
Co

un
ty

, E
sr

i, 
SB

 F
rie

dm
an

, V
illa

ge
 o

f L
isl

e

D
et

er
io

ra
tio

n

Im
pr

ov
ed

 P
ar

ce
l

Pr
op

os
ed

 R
PA

 B
ou

nd
ar

y


23

 o
f 2

9 
im

pr
ov

ed
 p

ar
ce

ls 
(7

9%
) e

xh
ib

it 
sig

ns
 o

f 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n


Su

rfa
ce

 d
et

er
io

ra
tio

n


Cr
ac

ks
 in

 p
ub

lic
 a

nd
 p

riv
at

e 
in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e


“A

llig
at

or
in

g”
 o

f p
av

em
en

t


Cr
ac

kin
g 

or
 c

ru
m

bl
in

g 
cu

rb
s a

nd
 d

riv
ew

ay
s


Bu

ild
in

g 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n


Cr
ac

ke
d 

fo
un

da
tio

ns


M
iss

in
g 

an
d 

de
te

rio
ra

tin
g 

sid
in

g 


De
te

rio
ra

tin
g 

gu
tte

rs
 a

nd
 ro

of
in

g


W
at

er
 d

am
ag

e


Fa

ct
or

 is
 m

ea
ni

ng
fu

lly
 p

re
se

nt
 a

nd
 re

as
on

ab
ly 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
RP

A

59 



SB
 F

rie
dm

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
s, 

LL
C

La
ck

 of
 EA

V G
ro

wt
h


Ar

ea
-w

id
e 

la
ck

 o
f g

ro
wt

h 
in

 p
ar

ce
l v

al
ue

s 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 R
PA


EA

V 
gr

ow
th

 ra
te

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
le

ss
 th

an
 th

e 
Co

ns
um

er
 

Pr
ice

 In
de

x 
gr

ow
th

 ra
te

 fo
r t

hr
ee

 (3
) o

f t
he

 la
st

 fi
ve

 
(5

) y
ea

r-
to

-y
ea

r p
er

io
ds

.


Fa

ct
or

 is
 e

va
lu

at
ed

 a
re

a-
w

id
e 

an
d 

is 
m

ea
ni

ng
fu

lly
 

pr
es

en
t w

ith
in

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 R
PA

IM
PR

OV
ED

 P
AR

CE
LS

: E
LI

GI
BI

LI
TY

 FI
ND

IN
GS

11

[1]
 C

on
su

m
er

 P
ric

e 
In

de
x 

fo
r a

ll 
ur

ba
n 

co
ns

um
er

s 
an

d 
al

l i
te

m
s, 

in
 th

e 
Ch

ica
go

-N
ap

er
vil

le
-E

lg
in

 a
re

a,
 n

ot
 se

as
on

al
ly 

ad
ju

st
ed

.
So

ur
ce

: D
uP

ag
e 

Co
un

ty
 S

up
er

vis
or

 o
f A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
; S

B 
Fr

ie
dm

an
; U

.S
. B

ur
ea

u 
of

 L
ab

or
 S

ta
tis

tic
s C

PI
 d

at
a 

fo
r 

Ch
ica

go
-N

ap
er

vil
le

-E
lg

in
, I

L-
IN

-W
I m

et
ro

po
lit

an
 a

re
a 

YE
AR

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

Im
pr

ov
ed

 S
tu

dy
 

Ar
ea

 P
ar

ce
ls 

EA
V

$1
0,

58
6,

94
0

$1
1,1

77
,5

32
$1

1,6
59

,7
92

$1
1,9

16
,7

12
$1

2,
38

5,
76

0
12

,3
89

,7
32

Pe
rc

en
t C

ha
ng

e
--

-
5.

6%
4.

3%
2.

2%
3.

9%
0.

0%

Ch
an

ge
 in

 C
PI

 [1
]

--
-

1.5
%

1.1
%

4.
2%

7.
6%

3.
3%

Im
pr

ov
ed

 R
PA

 
Pa

rc
el

s -
 G

ro
wt

h 
Le

ss
 T

ha
n 

CP
I

--
-

N
O

N
O

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

60 



SB
 F

rie
dm

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
s, 

LL
C

In
ad

eq
ua

te
 U

til
iti

es
IM

PR
OV

ED
 P

AR
CE

LS
: E

LI
GI

BI
LI

TY
 FI

ND
IN

GS


Pe

r t
he

 V
illa

ge
 o

f L
isl

e’s
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f P

ub
lic

 W
or

ks
, 1

00
%

 o
f 

im
pr

ov
ed

 p
ar

ce
ls 

wi
th

in
 p

ro
po

se
d 

RP
A 

su
ffe

r f
ro

m
 in

ad
eq

ua
te

 
ut

ilit
ie

s:


29
 o

f 2
9 

im
pr

ov
ed

 p
ar

ce
ls 

ar
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 th

e 
St

. J
os

ep
h’

s C
re

ek
 

W
at

er
sh

ed
 a

nd
 d

o 
no

t h
av

e 
ad

eq
ua

te
 st

or
m

 se
we

r s
to

ra
ge

, r
es

ul
tin

g 
in

 fl
oo

di
ng

 


St
or

m
w

at
er

 m
an

ag
em

en
t u

til
iti

es
 in

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 R
PA

 a
re

 o
f 

in
su

ffi
cie

nt
 c

ap
ac

ity
 to

 se
rv

e 
th

e 
us

es
 in

 th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
ro

je
ct

 
ar

ea


Fa

ct
or

 w
as

 fo
un

d 
to

 b
e 

pr
es

en
t t

o 
a 

m
ea

ni
ng

fu
l e

xt
en

t a
nd

 
re

as
on

ab
ly 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 R
PA

12

61 



SB
 F

rie
dm

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
s, 

LL
C

Pr
es

en
ce

 of
 S

tru
ct

ur
es

 B
el

ow
 M

in
im

um
 C

od
e

IM
PR

OV
ED

 P
AR

CE
LS

: E
LI

GI
BI

LI
TY

 FI
ND

IN
GS


Th

e 
Vi

lla
ge

 o
f L

isl
e 

us
es

 th
e 

fo
llo

wi
ng

 c
od

es
:


20

21
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l B

ui
ld

in
g 

Co
de

 


Du
Pa

ge
 C

ou
nt

y 
St

or
m

wa
te

r a
nd

 F
lo

od
pl

ai
n 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 


27

 o
f 2

7 
pr

im
ar

y 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 (1
00

%
) d

o 
no

t c
on

fo
rm

 to
 th

e 
Vi

lla
ge

’s 
an

d 
Co

un
ty

’s 
co

de
s 


Co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
pr

ed
at

es
 c

ur
re

nt
 c

od
es

 a
nd

 st
an

da
rd

s o
f t

he
 V

illa
ge

 a
nd

 
Co

un
ty


Bu

ild
in

gs
 m

ay
 b

e 
“g

ra
nd

fa
th

er
ed

-i n
” /

 n
ot

 b
e 

in
 d

ire
ct

 v
io

la
tio

n 
of

 a
ll 

or
di

na
nc

es


Th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 o

f s
tru

ct
ur

es
 b

el
ow

 m
in

im
um

 c
od

e 
st

an
da

rd
s, 

an
d 

th
e 

co
st

 to
 

up
gr

ad
e 

“g
ra

nd
fa

th
er

ed
” s

tru
ct

ur
es

 to
 m

ee
t m

od
er

n 
co

de
s m

ay
 a

lso
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l c

om
pe

tit
iv

en
es

s a
nd

 e
co

no
m

ic
 v

ia
bi

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
ar

ea


Fa

ct
or

 is
 m

ea
ni

ng
fu

lly
 p

re
se

nt
 a

nd
 re

as
on

ab
ly 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

RP
A

13

62 



SB
 F

rie
dm

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
s, 

LL
C

Tw
o 

Pa
th

s t
o 

Bl
ig

ht
ed

 E
lig

ib
ili

ty 
fo

r V
ac

an
t L

an
d

VA
CA

NT
 P

AR
CE

LS
: E

LI
GI

BI
LI

TY
 A

NA
LY

SI
S

14

At
 le

as
t t

w
o 

(2
) o

f 6
 p

os
sib

le
 fa

ct
or

s 
m

us
t b

e 
pr

es
en

t t
o 

a 
m

ea
ni

ng
fu

l e
xt

en
t a

nd
 re

as
on

ab
ly 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
.

At
 le

as
t o

ne
 (1

) o
f 6

 p
os

sib
le

 fa
ct

or
s 

m
us

t b
e 

pr
es

en
t t

o 
a 

m
ea

ni
ng

fu
l e

xt
en

t a
nd

 re
as

on
ab

ly 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

.

1.
O

bs
ol

et
e 

Pl
at

tin
g 

of
 V

ac
an

t L
an

d;
2.

Di
ve

rs
ity

 o
f O

wn
er

sh
ip

;
3.

Ta
x 

an
d 

Sp
ec

ia
l A

ss
es

sm
en

t D
el

in
qu

en
cie

s;
4.

De
te

rio
ra

tio
n 

of
 S

tru
ct

ur
es

 o
r S

ite
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 
N

ei
gh

bo
rin

g 
Ar

ea
s A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
th

e 
Va

ca
nt

 L
an

d;
5.

En
vir

on
m

en
ta

l C
on

ta
m

in
at

io
n;

 o
r 

6.
La

ck
 o

f G
ro

wt
h 

in
 E

qu
al

ize
d 

As
se

ss
ed

 V
al

ue

1.
Th

e 
ar

ea
 c

on
ta

in
s u

nu
se

d 
qu

ar
rie

s, 
st

rip
 m

in
es

 o
r s

tri
p 

m
in

e 
po

nd
s;

2.
Th

e 
ar

ea
 c

on
ta

in
s u

nu
se

d 
ra

il 
ya

rd
s, 

ra
il 

tra
ck

, o
r r

ai
lro

ad
 

rig
ht

s-
of

-w
ay

;
3.

Th
e 

ar
ea

, p
rio

r t
o 

its
 d

es
ig

na
tio

n,
 is

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
or

 
co

nt
rib

ut
es

 to
 c

hr
on

ic 
flo

od
in

g;
4.

Th
e 

ar
ea

 c
on

ta
in

s u
nu

se
d 

or
 il

le
ga

l d
um

pi
ng

 s
ite

s;
5.

Th
e 

ar
ea

 w
as

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

as
 a

 to
wn

 c
en

te
r p

rio
r t

o 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1, 

19
82

, i
s b

et
we

en
 5

0 
an

d 
10

0 
ac

re
s, 

an
d 

is 
75

%
 

va
ca

nt
 la

nd
; o

r
6.

Th
e 

ar
ea

 q
ua

lif
ie

d 
as

 b
lig

ht
ed

 p
rio

r t
o 

be
co

m
in

g 
va

ca
nt

63 



SB
 F

rie
dm

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
s, 

LL
C

1-
Fa

ct
or

 Te
st

: C
on

tri
bu

te
s t

o 
Flo

od
in

g
VA

CA
NT

 P
AR

CE
LS

: E
LI

GI
BI

LI
TY

 FI
ND

IN
GS

 

15


O

ne
 F

ac
to

r T
es

t: 
Q

ua
lif

ie
s a

s a
 “B

lig
ht

ed
 A

re
a”

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
fo

llo
wi

ng
 fa

ct
or

s: 


Su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ris

k 
fo

r c
hr

on
ic 

flo
od

in
g


Co

nt
rib

ut
es

 to
 fl

oo
di

ng
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

wa
te

rs
he

d


Ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 a

 st
ud

y 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

by
 G

ew
al

t H
am

ilt
on

 A
ss

oc
ia

te
s o

f I
llin

oi
s i

n 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

02
5:

 
“ru

no
ff 

fro
m

… 
10

0%
 o

f t
he

 th
e 

va
ca

nt
 p

ar
ce

ls 
in

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 R
PA

 a
re

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ris

k 
fo

r c
hr

on
ic 

flo
od

in
g 

an
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
to

 
flo

od
in

g 
wi

th
in

 th
e 

Sa
in

t J
os

ep
h 

Cr
ee

k 
W

at
er

sh
ed

 a
nd

 th
e 

Ea
st

 B
ra

nc
h 

Du
Pa

ge
 R

ive
r W

at
er

sh
ed

.”


Fa

ct
or

 is
 m

ea
ni

ng
fu

lly
 p

re
se

nt
 a

nd
 re

as
on

ab
ly 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

RP
A

64 



SB
 F

rie
dm

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
s, 

LL
C

2-
Fa

ct
or

 Te
st

: O
bs

ol
et

e P
la

tti
ng

VA
CA

NT
 P

AR
CE

LS
: E

LI
GI

BI
LI

TY
 FI

ND
IN

GS

16


9 

of
 11

 v
ac

an
t p

ar
ce

ls 
(8

2%
) e

xh
ib

it 
sig

ns
 o

f o
bs

ol
et

e 
pl

at
tin

g


O

bs
ol

et
e 

pl
at

tin
g


In

su
ffi

cie
nt

 s
tre

et
 fr

on
ta

ge
 a

nd
/o

r a
cc

es
s t

o 
rig

ht
s-

of
 w

ay


In
su

ffi
cie

nt
 lo

t w
id

th
 to

 a
ttr

ac
t c

on
te

m
po

ra
ry

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t


Pl

at
tin

g 
wi

th
ou

t s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 o

r i
rre

gu
la

r s
pa

ce
 c

an
 m

ak
e 

it 
m

or
e 

di
ffi

cu
lt 

to
 a

ttr
ac

t n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 b
us

in
es

se
s


Fa

ct
or

 is
 m

ea
ni

ng
fu

lly
 p

re
se

nt
 a

nd
 re

as
on

ab
ly 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 th

e 
RP

A

CHELSEA AVE

IVANHOE AVE

So
ur

ce
: D

uP
ag

e 
Co

un
ty

, E
sr

i, 
SB

 F
rie

dm
an

, V
illa

ge
 o

f L
isl

e

O
bs

ol
et

e 
Pl

at
tin

g

Va
ca

nt
 P

ar
ce

l

Pr
op

os
ed

 R
PA

 B
ou

nd
ar

y

65 



SB
 F

rie
dm

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
s, 

LL
C

La
ck

 of
 EA

V G
ro

wt
h


Ar

ea
-w

id
e 

la
ck

 o
f g

ro
wt

h 
in

 p
ar

ce
l v

al
ue

s 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 R
PA


EA

V 
gr

ow
th

 ra
te

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
le

ss
 th

an
 th

e 
Co

ns
um

er
 

Pr
ice

 In
de

x 
gr

ow
th

 ra
te

 fo
r t

hr
ee

 (3
) o

f t
he

 la
st

 fi
ve

 
(5

) y
ea

r-
to

-y
ea

r p
er

io
ds

.


Fa

ct
or

 is
 e

va
lu

at
ed

 a
re

a-
w

id
e 

an
d 

is 
m

ea
ni

ng
fu

lly
 

pr
es

en
t w

ith
in

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 R
PA

VA
CA

NT
 P

AR
CE

LS
: E

LI
GI

BI
LI

TY
 FI

ND
IN

GS

17

[1]
 C

on
su

m
er

 P
ric

e 
In

de
x 

fo
r a

ll 
ur

ba
n 

co
ns

um
er

s 
an

d 
al

l i
te

m
s, 

in
 th

e 
Ch

ica
go

-N
ap

er
vil

le
-E

lg
in

 a
re

a,
 n

ot
 se

as
on

al
ly 

ad
ju

st
ed

.
So

ur
ce

: D
uP

ag
e 

Co
un

ty
 S

up
er

vis
or

 o
f A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
; S

B 
Fr

ie
dm

an
; U

.S
. B

ur
ea

u 
of

 L
ab

or
 S

ta
tis

tic
s C

PI
 d

at
a 

fo
r 

Ch
ica

go
-N

ap
er

vil
le

-E
lg

in
, I

L-
IN

-W
I m

et
ro

po
lit

an
 a

re
a 

YE
AR

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

Va
ca

nt
 R

PA
 P

ar
ce

ls 
EA

V
$5

82
,0

40
$7

56
,5

80
$7

90
,8

00
$8

05
,2

90
$8

36
,9

20
$8

40
,3

70

Pe
rc

en
t C

ha
ng

e
--

-
30

.0
%

4.
5%

1.8
%

3.
9%

0.
4%

Ch
an

ge
 in

 C
PI

 [1
]

--
-

1.5
%

1.1
%

4.
2%

7.
6%

3.
3%

Va
ca

nt
 R

PA
 P

ar
ce

ls 
- G

ro
wt

h 
Le

ss
 T

ha
n 

CP
I

--
-

N
O

N
O

YE
S

YE
S

YE
S

66 



SB
 F

rie
dm

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
s, 

LL
C

RE
QU

IR
ED

 TE
ST

S 
AN

D 
FI

ND
IN

GS

18

Ad
di

tio
na

l R
eq

ui
re

d 
Fi

nd
in

gs
 &

 T
es

ts
Co

nc
lu

sio
ns

La
ck

 o
f G

ro
w

th
 fr

om
 P

riv
at

e 
In

ve
st

m
en

t
Th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 R

PA
’s 

pa
rc

el
s h

av
e 

no
t b

ee
n 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
gr

ow
th

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
hr

ou
gh

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t b
y 

pr
iva

te
 e

nt
er

pr
ise

, a
s d

em
on

st
ra

te
d 

by
 li

m
ite

d 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n-
re

la
te

d 
bu

ild
in

g 
pe

rm
it 

ac
tiv

ity
 a

nd
 la

gg
in

g 
EA

V 
gr

ow
th

.

“B
ut

 F
or

”

W
ith

ou
t t

he
 s

up
po

rt 
of

 p
ub

lic
 re

so
ur

ce
s, 

th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 fo

r t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
RP

A 
w

ou
ld

 m
os

t l
ike

ly 
no

t b
e 

re
al

ize
d.

 T
he

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 u

pd
at

e 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

bu
ild

in
gs

 
ex

hi
bi

tin
g 

de
te

rio
ra

tio
n,

 in
ad

eq
ua

te
 u

til
iti

es
, a

nd
 th

at
 a

re
 b

el
ow

 m
in

im
um

 c
od

e 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 R
PA

 a
re

 e
xt

en
siv

e 
an

d 
co

st
ly,

 a
nd

 th
e 

pr
iva

te
 m

ar
ke

t, 
on

 it
s o

w
n,

 h
as

 sh
ow

n 
lit

tle
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 a
bs

or
b 

al
l t

he
se

 c
os

ts
. P

ub
lic

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 a
ss

ist
 w

ith
 p

ub
lic

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

-s
pe

cif
ic 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t c

os
ts

 a
re

 e
ss

en
tia

l t
o 

le
ve

ra
ge

 p
riv

at
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t a

nd
 fa

cil
ita

te
 a

re
a-

w
id

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

Co
nt

ig
ui

ty
 o

f P
ar

ce
ls

Th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 R
PA

 in
clu

de
s 

on
ly 

th
os

e 
co

nt
ig

uo
us

 p
ar

ce
ls 

of
 re

al
 p

ro
pe

rty
 th

at
 a

re
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 

be
ne

fit
 s

ub
st

an
tia

lly
 fr

om
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 R

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n.

Co
nf

or
m

an
ce

 to
 P

la
ns

 o
f V

ill
ag

e
Co

nf
or

m
s t

o 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

es
 la

nd
 u

se
s c

on
sis

te
nt

 w
ith

 th
e 

Vi
lla

ge
 o

f L
isl

e 
20

24
 C

om
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

Pl
an

 
an

d 
O

gd
en

 A
ve

nu
e 

Co
m

m
er

cia
l C

or
rid

or
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
Pl

an
.

H
ou

sin
g 

Im
pa

ct
 a

nd
 R

el
at

ed
 M

at
te

rs
Th

e 
Vi

lla
ge

 c
er

tif
ie

s 
th

at
 d

isp
la

ce
m

en
t o

f n
o 

m
or

e 
th

an
 10

 o
cc

up
ie

d 
un

its
 w

ill 
oc

cu
r a

s a
 re

su
lt 

of
 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 p
ur

su
an

t t
o 

th
is 

Re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t P
la

n.
 T

he
re

fo
re

, a
 H

ou
sin

g 
Im

pa
ct

 S
tu

dy
 is

 n
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

un
de

r t
he

 A
ct

. 

Es
tim

at
ed

 D
at

es
 o

f C
om

pl
et

io
n

Th
is 

Re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t P
la

n 
is 

es
tim

at
ed

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
, a

nd
 a

ll 
ob

lig
at

io
ns

 is
su

ed
 to

 fi
na

nc
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t c
os

ts
 sh

al
l b

e 
re

tir
ed

 n
o 

la
te

r t
ha

n 
De

ce
m

be
r 3

1, 
20

49
.

67 



03
 K

ey
 C

om
po

ne
nt

s o
f R

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
la

n

19

68 



SB
 F

rie
dm

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
s, 

LL
C

M
AJ

OR
 R

ED
EV

EL
OP

M
EN

T O
BJ

EC
TI

VE
S

1.
Fa

ci
lit

at
e 

th
e 

ph
ys

ic
al

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

nd
/o

r r
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 a
nd

 fa
ça

de
s w

ith
in

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 R
PA

, 
an

d 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

th
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

of
 n

ew
 in

du
st

ria
l a

nd
 c

om
m

er
cia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
wh

er
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te

2.
Fo

st
er

 th
e 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t, 

re
pa

ir,
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

an
d/

or
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f p

ub
lic

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
, w

he
re

 n
ee

de
d,

 to
 c

re
at

e 
an

 
e n

vir
on

m
en

t c
on

du
civ

e 
to

 p
riv

at
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t

3.
Fa

ci
lit

at
e 

th
e 

re
no

va
tio

n 
or

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 st
or

m
w

at
er

 m
an

ag
em

en
t s

ys
te

m
s a

nd
 fl

oo
d 

co
nt

ro
l w

ith
in

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 
RP

A

4.
Pr

ov
id

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s f

or
 st

re
et

sc
ap

in
g,

 la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

an
d 

sig
na

ge
 t o

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

im
ag

e,
 a

ttr
ac

tiv
en

es
s 

an
d 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ilit
y 

of
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 R

PA

5.
Fa

ci
lit

at
e 

th
e 

as
se

m
bl

y, 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n,
 a

nd
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

o f
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

sit
es

 in
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 R

PA
 fo

r r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 n

ew
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t b

y 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s a
s a

llo
we

d 
by

 th
e 

Ac
t

6.
Su

pp
or

t t
he

 g
oa

ls 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 o
f o

th
er

 o
ve

rla
pp

in
g 

pl
an

s, 
in

clu
di

ng
 th

e 
20

24
 C

om
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

Pl
an

7.
Co

or
di

na
te

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fe

de
ra

l, 
st

at
e 

an
d 

lo
ca

l r
es

ou
rc

es
 to

 fu
rth

er
 th

e 
go

al
s o

f t
hi

s R
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

la
n 

an
d 

Pr
oj

ec
t

20

69 



SB
 F

rie
dm

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
s, 

LL
C

PR
OP

OS
ED

 B
UD

GE
T

21

El
ig

ib
le

 E
xp

en
se

 
Es

tim
at

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 C

os
ts

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l S
er

vic
e 

Co
st

s 
$1

,0
00

,0
00

 
Si

te
 M

ar
ke

tin
g 

Co
st

s
$2

,0
00

,0
00

 
Pr

op
er

ty
 A

ss
em

bl
y 

an
d 

Si
te

 P
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

Co
st

s 
$2

,0
00

,0
00

 
Co

st
s o

f B
ui

ld
in

g 
Re

ha
bi

lit
at

io
n

$5
,0

00
,0

00
 

Co
st

s o
f C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 P

ub
lic

 W
or

ks
 o

r I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
$2

0,
00

0,
00

0 
Fin

an
cin

g 
Co

st
s

$5
00

,0
00

 
Ta

xin
g 

Di
st

ric
t C

ap
ita

l C
os

ts
 

$4
00

,0
00

 
Sc

ho
ol

 D
ist

ric
t I

nc
re

as
ed

 C
os

ts
$5

0,
00

0
Lib

ra
ry

 D
ist

ric
t I

nc
re

as
ed

 C
os

ts
$5

0,
00

0
Re

lo
ca

tio
n 

Co
st

s
$5

00
,0

00
 

Pa
ym

en
ts

 in
 L

ie
u 

of
 Ta

xe
s

$5
00

,0
00

 
In

te
re

st
 C

os
ts

 (D
ev

el
op

er
 o

r P
ro

pe
rty

 O
wn

er
)

$5
00

,0
00

 
TO

TA
L 

RE
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PR
O

JE
CT

 C
O

ST
S

$3
2,

50
0,

00
0


Up

pe
r e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 li

m
it 

th
at

 m
ay

 b
e 

fu
nd

ed
 u

sin
g 

ta
x 

in
cr

em
en

t 
re

ve
nu

es
.


Ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

es
tim

at
ed

 li
ne

-
ite

m
 c

os
ts

 a
re

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
an

d 
m

ay
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
Vi

lla
ge

 w
ith

ou
t 

am
en

dm
en

t t
o 

th
is 

Re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
Pl

an
, e

ith
er

 in
cr

ea
sin

g 
or

 d
ec

re
as

in
g 

lin
e-

ite
m

 c
os

ts
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f c
ha

ng
ed

 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t c

os
ts

 a
nd

 n
ee

ds
. 

70 



SB
 F

rie
dm

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
s, 

LL
C

FU
TU

RE
 LA

ND
 U

SE


Pr

op
os

ed
 “m

ixe
d-

us
e”

 fu
tu

re
 la

nd
 u

se


Fo

r t
he

 p
ur

po
se

s o
f t

hi
s p

la
n,

 th
is 

de
sig

na
tio

n 
is 

m
ea

nt
 to

 
al

lo
w 

fo
r a

 v
ar

ie
ty

 o
f u

se
s t

hr
ou

gh
ou

t t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
RP

A,
 in

 
a 

m
an

ne
r t

ha
t i

s i
n 

co
nf

or
m

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e 

20
24

 
Co

m
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

Pl
an

 a
nd

 th
e 

O
gd

en
 A

ve
nu

e 
Co

rri
do

r P
la

n


Pe

rm
itt

ed
 u

se
s i

n 
m

ixe
d-

us
e 

de
sig

na
tio

n 
in

clu
de

:


Co
m

m
er

cia
l


In

du
st

ria
l 


Pu

bl
ic/

Se
m

i-P
ub

lic
 In

st
itu

tio
na

l 


Pa
rk

s/
O

pe
n 

Sp
ac

e


Ut
ilit

y


Ri
gh

t-
of

-W
ay

22

CHELSEA AVE

IVANHOE AVE

So
ur

ce
: D

uP
ag

e 
Co

un
ty

, E
sr

i, 
SB

 F
rie

dm
an

, V
illa

ge
 o

f L
isl

e

M
ix

ed
-U

se

Pr
op

os
ed

 R
PA

 B
ou

nd
ar

y

71 



SB
 F

rie
dm

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
s, 

LL
C

PU
BL

IC
 A

PP
RO

VA
L P

RO
CE

SS

23

D
at

e
Ap

pr
ov

al
 S

te
p

M
ay

 13
, 2

02
5

Jo
in

t R
ev

ie
w 

Bo
ar

d 
M

ee
tin

g 
Ju

ne
 16

, 2
02

5
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

rin
g

Ju
ly 

21
, 2

02
5

Vi
lla

ge
 B

oa
rd

 C
on

sid
er

at
io

n 

72 



04
 D

IS
CU

SS
IO

N

24

73 



SB
 F

rie
dm

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
s, 

LL
C

70
 W

 M
ad

iso
n 

St
, S

ui
te

 3
70

0
Ch

ica
go

, I
L 

60
60

2
31

2-
42

4-
42

50
 | 

sb
fri

ed
m

an
.co

m

VI
SI

O
N

 |
 E

CO
N

O
M

IC
S 

M
AR

KE
T 

AN
AL

YS
IS

 A
ND

 R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 E
CO

NO
M

IC
S

ST
RA

TE
G

Y

 D
EV

EL
OP

M
EN

T 
ST

RA
TE

GY
 A

ND
 P

LA
NN

IN
G

FI
N

AN
CE

 |
 I

M
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

O
N

 

PU
BL

IC
-P

RI
VA

TE
 P

AR
TN

ER
SH

IP
S 

AN
D 

IM
PL

EM
EN

TA
TI

ON

25

74 


